
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Pension Fund Committee 
 
 

Date Tuesday 4 December 2012 

Time 10.00 am 

Venue Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 

1. Declarations of interest (if any)   
 

2. The Minutes of the Meeting held on 4 September 2012  (Pages 
1 - 6) 

 

3. Graphs showing recent movements of the Stock and Share 
Indices  (Pages 7 - 14) 

 

4. Graphs showing recent movements of the Major Currencies 
against Sterling  (Pages 15 - 20) 

 

5. Performance Management Report  (Pages 21 - 30) 
 

6. Pension Fund Investments  (Pages 31 - 36) 
 

7. Record Keeping - Pensions Regulator Best Practice Guidelines  
(Pages 37 - 40) 

 

8. Terms of Reference  (Pages 41 - 50) 
 

9. Local Government Pension Scheme: Investment in Partnerships 
- CLG Consultation  (Pages 51 - 82) 

 

10. Short Term Investments for the Period Ended 30 September 
2012  (Pages 83 - 84) 



11. Annual Governance Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2012  
(Pages 85 - 116) 

 

12. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the 
Meeting is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration  

  

13. Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the 
discussion of items containing exempt information  

  

Part B 
 
Items during which it is considered the meeting will not be open 

to the public (consideration of exempt or confidential 
information) 

 
14. The Minutes of the Meeting held on  4 September 2012  (Pages 

117 - 126) 
 

15. Report of the Pension Fund Advisor  (Pages 127 - 136) 
 

16. Report of BlackRock  (Pages 137 - 150) 
 

17. Report of AllianceBernstein  (Pages 151 - 166) 
 

18. Report of CBRE Global Investors  (Pages 167 - 174) 
 

19. Report of Royal London Asset Management  (Pages 175 - 230) 
 

20. Report of Barings Asset Management  (Pages 231 - 238) 
 

21. Transition Manager Post Trade Report  (Pages 239 - 256) 
 

22. Verbal Update on the Review of Pension Fund Arrangements  
  

23. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

Colette Longbottom 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
 
 
County Hall 
Durham 
26 November 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
To: The Members of the Pension Fund Committee 

 
County Council Members: 
Councillors Andy Turner, N Martin, C Carr, J Chaplow, A Hopgood, P Jopling, 
J Lethbridge, D Morgan, R Ord, G Richardson and R Todd 
 
Darlington Borough Council Members 
Councillor I G Haszeldine 
(vacancy) 
 
Scheduled Bodies Representative 
Mr D Sanders 
 
Admitted Bodies Representative: 
Mr K Tallintire 
 
Pensioner Representative 
Mrs O Brown 
 
Active Members Representative 
(vacancy) 
 
Further Education Colleges Representative 
(vacancy) 
 
Advisers: 
County Council Officers 
Chief Executive 
Corporate Director, 
Resources 
Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services 
Strategic Finance 
Manager – Corporate 
Finance 
 

G Garlick 
D McLure 

 
C Longbottom 
 
H  Appleton 

 
 

Independent Advisers 
P J Williams 
R Bowker 
 
Investment Managers 
BlackRock  
AllianceBernstein          
CBRE  Global Investors 
Royal London Asset Management 
Barings  
                                      
Staff Observors 
UNISON                                   N Hancock 
GMB    
 

 Contact: Jill Errington Tel: 03000 269703 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
 
 

At a Meeting of Pension Fund Committee held in Committee Room 2 - County Hall, 
Durham on Tuesday 4 September 2012 at 10.00 am 

 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor N Martin (Chair) 

 

Members of the Committee: 

Councillors C Carr, J Chaplow, A Hopgood, P Jopling, J Lethbridge, D Morgan, R Ord, 
G Richardson and R Todd 
 
Apologies: 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Andy Turner and Olive Brown 
 
Admitted Bodies Representative 
Mr K Tallintire 
 
Also Present: 

H Appleton – Strategic Finance Manager – Corporate Finance 
B Smith – Litigation Manager 
N Orton – Payroll and Pensions Manager 
A Wallage – Internal Audit and Risk Manager 
R Auty – PwC 
 
Independent Advisers: 
P Williams – P J Williams 
R Bowker – PSolve 
D Banks -   PSolve  

 
1 Declarations of interest (if any)  

 
Councillor Carr declared a personal but not prejudicial interest in Agenda item 
numbered 10 as he was a Member of Audit Committee. 
 

2 The Minutes of the Meeting held on 14 June 2012  
 
The Minutes of the Meeting held on 14 June 2012 were agreed as a correct record 
and were signed by the Chairman.  
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



3 Graphs showing recent movements of the Stock and Share Indices  
 
Consideration was given to graphs showing recent movements in the Stock and 
Share Indices (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the information given be noted.  
 

4 Performance Management Report - Quarter Ended 31 March 2012  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director, Resources which 
provided an overview of the Pension Fund up to 31 March 2012 (for copy see file of 
Minutes). 
 
The report gave details of the performance of the Investment Managers against 
benchmarks. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the information given be noted. 
 

5 Performance Management Report - Quarter Ended 30 June 2012  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director, Resources which 
provided an overview of the Pension Fund up to 30 June 2012 (for copy see file of 
Minutes). 
 
The report gave details of the performance of the six Investment Managers against 
benchmarks. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the information given be noted. 
 

6 Pension Fund Investments  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director, Resources which 
gave details of the overall value of the Pension Fund as at 30 June 2012, of the 
additional sums available to the Managers for further investment or amounts to be 
withdrawn from Managers (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Members were advised of amendments to the figures relating to the Value of the 
Fund; as at 30 June 2012 the Value of the Fund was £1,827,960,000. At 31 March 
2012 it was £1,862,810,000 a decrease of £38,850,000 in the quarter. 
 
For the reasons outlined in the report it was recommended that no money be added 
to the sums to be allocated to the Managers for investment in the quarter. Normally 
Fund Rebalancing took place on a quarterly basis but it had been suspended until 
the results of the Strategy Review were put into operation. 

Page 2



The report also gave details of the forecasted cash flow for the Pension Fund for 
2012/2013 and the assumptions used to calculate this. 
 
In response to a question, Members were advised that whilst information relating to 
projected retirements for other employing Authorities was not available Durham 
County Council as the largest employer would have the greatest impact on the 
Fund’s spend.  
 
Resolved: 
 
That the information given be noted and no further allocation of cash be made to 
Managers.   
 

7 Pension Fund Policy Documents - Funding Strategy Statement and Statement 
of Investment Principles  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director, Resources which 
informed Members of the results of the consultation on the policy documents for the 
year ended 31 March 2012 (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Members were advised that as the review of the Pension Fund’s arrangements 
continued and due to changes in Regulations, the documents would be updated 
further as required.   
 
In response to a question Members were advised that to date no admission bodies 
had given notice however Members would be informed if action was to be taken to 
recover assets when any admitted bodies ceased to exist. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the comments from the consultees be noted and the revised Funding Strategy 
Statement and Statement of Investment Principles be accepted for publication on 
the Council’s website. 
 

8 Local Government Pension Scheme (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2012  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director, Resources which 
gave details of changes to be made to the regulations governing the Local 
Government Pension Scheme by the latest set of amending regulations, the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2012 (for copy see file 
of Minutes). 
 
In response to a question Nick Orton advised that the accrued pension 
contributions from those NHS employees who joined the Local Government 
Pension Scheme would be transferred to the Durham Fund. 
 
Resolved:  
 
That the information given be noted. 
 

Page 3



9 Local Government Pension Scheme 2014  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director, Resources which 
provided an update on the latest position on proposals to reform the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Nick Orton advised that since the report had been circulated all Trade Unions had 
voted to accept the proposals. 
 
A Member stated that the main provisions of the scheme should be publicised with 
particular reference made to the percentage of full time and part time employees 
who would benefit from the proposals.   
 
Resolved: 
 
That the information given be noted. 
 

10 Statement of Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2012  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director, Resources which 
presented the Pension Fund Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2012 and 
advised of any significant issues arising from the accounts (for copy see file of 
Minutes). 
 
The Audit Commission produced an Interim Governance Report for the Pension 
Fund and this was attached to the report for information. 
 
The Statement of Accounts would be submitted to Audit Committee for approval at 
the end of September 2012. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the information given be noted.  
 

11 Short Term Investments for the Year Ended 31 March 2012  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director, Resources which 
gave details of the Pension Fund’s short term investments for the period ended 31 
March 2012 (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the year end position of the Pension Fund’s short term investments for 
2011/2012 be noted. 
 
The Chairman agreed that in order to seek the views of the Committee the next 
item of business could be reported. 
 
 
 

Page 4



12 National Association of Pension Funds  
 
The Chairman reported that in his capacity as Vice-Chair of the Pension Fund 
Committee the National Association of Pension Funds had communicated with him 
directly on matters within the remit of the Pension Fund Committee.  
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Vice-Chair of the Committee be authorised to respond to correspondence 
from the National Association of Pension Funds as appropriate. 
  
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



U
K

 M
a

rk
e

ts

!505

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0
/0
9
/1
1

3
0
/1
0
/1
1

3
0
/1
1
/1
1

3
0
/1
2
/1
1

3
0
/0
1
/1
2

2
9
/0
2
/1
2

3
0
/0
3
/1
2

3
0
/0
4
/1
2

3
0
/0
5
/1
2

3
0
/0
6
/1
2

3
0
/0
7
/1
2

3
0
/0
8
/1
2

3
0
/0
9
/1

A
ll
"S
h
a
re
"U
K

F
.I
."
G
il
ts

I.
L.
"G
il
ts

Agenda Item 3

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



O
v
e

rs
e

a
s
 E

q
u

it
y
 M

a
rk

e
ts

!1
0!505

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
0
/0
9
/1
1

3
0
/1
0
/1
1

3
0
/1
1
/1
1

3
0
/1
2
/1
1

3
0
/0
1
/1
2

2
9
/0
2
/1
2

3
0
/0
3
/1
2

3
0
/0
4
/1
2

3
0
/0
5
/1
2

3
0
/0
6
/1
2

3
0
/0
7
/1
2

3
0
/0
8
/1
2

3
0
/0
9
/1
2

N
."
A
m
e
ri
ca

E
u
ro
p
e
"E
x!
U
K

Ja
p
a
n

P
a
ci
fi
c"
E
x!
Ja
p
a
n

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



1
0

 Y
e

a
r 

G
o

v
t.

 B
o

n
d

 Y
ie

ld
s

0

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

3
0
/0
9
/1
1

3
0
/1
0
/1
1

3
0
/1
1
/1
1

3
0
/1
2
/1
1

3
0
/0
1
/1
2

2
9
/0
2
/1
2

3
0
/0
3
/1
2

3
0
/0
4
/1
2

3
0
/0
5
/1
2

3
0
/0
6
/1
2

3
0
/0
7
/1
2

3
0
/0
8
/1
2

3
0
/0
9
/1
2

1
0
!y
r!
G
il
t

1
0
!y
r!
U
S
T

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



3
0
!y
r!
G
il
t!
Y
ie
ld

!0
.3

!0
.2

!0
.10

0
.1

0
.2

0
.3

0
.4

0
.5 3
0
/0
9
/1
1

3
0
/1
0
/1
1

3
0
/1
1
/1
1

3
0
/1
2
/1
1

3
0
/0
1
/1
2

2
9
/0
2
/1
2

3
0
/0
3
/1
2

3
0
/0
4
/1
2

3
0
/0
5
/1
2

3
0
/0
6
/1
2

3
0
/0
7
/1
2

3
0
/0
8
/1
2

3
0
/0
9
/1
2

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



£
!v
s.
!$

1
.5
2

1
.5
4

1
.5
6

1
.5
8

1
.6

1
.6
2

1
.6
4

3
0
!S
e
p
!1
1

3
0
!O
ct
!1
1

3
0
!N
o
v
!1
1

3
0
!D
e
c!
1
1

3
0
!J
a
n
!1
2

2
9
!F
e
b
!1
2

3
0
!M

a
r!
1
2

3
0
!A
p
r!
1
2

3
0
!M

a
y
!1
2

3
0
!J
u
n
!1
2

3
0
!J
u
l!
1
2

3
0
!A
u
g
!1
2

Agenda Item 4

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



£
!v
s.
!€

1
.0
5

1
.1

1
.1
5

1
.2

1
.2
5

1
.3 3
0
!S
e
p
!1
1

3
0
!O
ct
!1
1

3
0
!N
o
v
!1
1

3
0
!D
e
c!
1
1

3
0
!J
a
n
!1
2

2
9
!F
e
b
!1
2

3
0
!M

a
r!
1
2

3
0
!A
p
r!
1
2

3
0
!M

a
y
!1
2

3
0
!J
u
n
!1
2

3
0
!J
u
l!
1
2

3
0
!A
u
g
!1
2

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



£
!v
s.
!Y
e
n

1
1
5

1
1
7

1
1
9

1
2
1

1
2
3

1
2
5

1
2
7

1
2
9

1
3
1

1
3
3

1
3
5

3
0
!S
e
p
!1
1

3
0
!O
ct
!1
1

3
0
!N
o
v
!1
1

3
0
!D
e
c!
1
1

3
0
!J
a
n
!1
2

2
9
!F
e
b
!1
2

3
0
!M

a
r!
1
2

3
0
!A
p
r!
1
2

3
0
!M

a
y
!1
2

3
0
!J
u
n
!1
2

3
0
!J
u
l!
1
2

3
0
!A
u
g
!1
2

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Pension Fund/PT21 

Pension Fund Committee 
 

4 December 2012 
 
Performance Management Report  
 

 
 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1 The purpose of the report is to provide an overview for Members of the 

performance of the Fund up to 30 September 2012.   
 
Background 
 
2 The performance of the five Managers is measured against 

personalised benchmarks chosen at the inception of the Fund.  The 
attached report from JPMorgan, the Fund’s custodian, shows:- 

 
 (a) The Managers benchmarks. 
 
 (b) The total Fund performance, for the quarter, year to date and 

since inception.   
 
 (c)  The Managers’ performance in absolute and relative terms 

against the relevant benchmarks, for the quarter, year to date 
and since inception. 

 
 (d) A portfolio comparison for the quarter ended 30 September 

2012 and for the period since inception. 
 
Recommendation 
 
3 Members note the information contained in this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Hilary Appleton  Tel:  03000 266239  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



   

Worldwide Securities Services

Performance Measurement Report 

for

September 30, 2012

Durham County Council Pension Fund

for period ending 

Page 23



Contents

Page

Benchmark Association Table 3

Executive Summary of Total Plan  4

Total Plan Performance Returns 5

Portfolio Comparison  6

Disclaimer  7

Page 24



 

Benchmark Association Table

PORTFOLIO INDEX TARGET WEIGHT %

Edinburgh Partners MSCI AC World Index (Gross) +3% pa 100.00

Blackrock FTSE All Share (Gross) +3% pa 100.00

Blackrock Passive Equity FTSE-Ftse Aw Developed (Gross) Not Applicable 100.00

Alliance Berstein GBP Libor (3 month) +3% pa 100.00

Royal London FTSE index Linked >5 years +0.5% pa 100.00

Barings GBP Libor (3 month) +4% pa 100.00

CBRE 1 Headline RPI +5% pa 100.00

CBRE 2 Headline RPI +5% pa 100.00

Re Alliance Berstein PPIP GBP Libor (3 month) +3% pa 100.00

Total Plan Composite Manager Weighted Benchmark Not Applicable 100.00

3Page 25



Executive Summary of Total Plan as at 30/09/2012

Overview

Market Values

Qtr 3 - 12 Qtr 2 - 12 Qtr 1 - 12 Qtr 4 - 11

Total Plan 1,858.65 1,827.96 1,862.81 1,796.67

Performance

Performance (%) *

Qtr Ytd 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs

Since 

02/2008

Total Plan 1.67 4.28 10.83 7.3            - 5.39

Total Plan Benchmark 1.59 4.71 11.64 9.0            - 7.28

Excess return 0.08 -0.43 -0.81 -1.78 -1.89 

Total Plan Performance

In GBP mil's

-4.00  

-2.00  

0.00  

2.00  

4.00  

6.00  

8.00  

10.00  

12.00  

14.00  

Qtr Ytd 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs Since 02/2008 

Total Plan Total Plan Benchmark Excess return 

During the quarter the total market value of the Durham County Council Pension Plan increased by +£30.7m to £1,858.65m. There were no 

significant contributions or withdrawals from the plan. 

 

The performance return for the Plan over the third quarter of 2012 was +1.67%, compared to the Plan benchmark return of  +1.59%. The 

Plan therefore outperformed the benchmark by +0.08%. 

 

Equity markets were up over this quarter with the FTSE All Share (+3% pa) rising +5.48% and the FTSE Aw Developed also up by +3.86% 

in Sterling terms. Index Linked bonds were down with the FTSE index linked over 5 years index (+0.5% pa) decreasing by  -3.04%. 

  

 

4
Page 26



 

Total Plan Performance Returns as at 30/09/12

Currency GBP

 
Mkt. Val. in 

Mil's Qtr Ytd 1 Year 2 Years 3 Years

Since 

02/2008

Total Plan 1858.7 1.67 4.28 10.83 5.74 7.26 5.39

Total Plan Benchmark 1.59 4.71 11.64 8.00 9.04 7.28

Excess return 0.08 -0.43 -0.81 -2.25 -1.78 -1.89 

 
Mkt. Val. in 

Mil's Qtr Ytd 1 Year 2 Years 3 Years

Since 

02/2008

Edinburgh Partners 0.3 -1.19 0.89 7.51 -0.32 0.61 2.14

Zero Return - Historically MSCI AC World Index (Gross) +3% pa -0.35 6.22 15.10 6.43 8.86 7.16

Excess return -0.84 -5.33 -7.59 -6.75 -8.25 -5.02 

Blackrock 397.3 3.94 8.45 18.26 6.62 11.01 5.04

FTSE All Share (Gross) +3% pa 5.48 10.86 21.06 9.31 11.45 7.00

Excess return -1.54 -2.40 -2.80 -2.69 -0.44 -1.96 

Blackrock (Passive Equity) 526.2 3.89 - - - - 2.26

FTSE-Ftse Aw Developed (Gross) 3.86 - - - - 2.43

Excess return 0.03 - - - - -0.17 

Alliance Bernstein 290.3 2.97 6.91 8.27 4.73 6.17 4.88

GBP Libor +3% pa 0.92 2.95 3.97 3.89 3.82 4.79

Excess return 2.05 3.96 4.29 0.84 2.35 0.09

Re Alliance Bernstein PPIP 0.6 9.77 32.45 24.88 11.15 - 16.26

GBP Libor +3% pa (PPIP) 0.92 2.95 3.97 3.89 - 3.83

Excess return 8.85 29.50 20.90 7.26 - 12.43

Royal London 363.4 -3.17 -3.91 5.74 9.63 9.90 8.04

FTSE index Linked >5 years +0.5% pa -3.04 -3.96 5.55 9.87 9.93 7.85

Excess return -0.13 0.05 0.19 -0.24 -0.03 0.19

Barings 152.0 1.86 4.46 6.85 4.95 6.86 7.18

GBP Libor +4% pa 1.17 3.70 4.98 4.90 4.83 5.80

Excess return 0.69 0.77 1.87 0.05 2.03 1.37

CBRE1 101.0 1.57 5.51 7.67 8.34 9.26 -1.76 

Headline RPI +5% pa (CBRE1) 2.23 5.80 7.78 9.30 9.48 8.34

Excess return -0.66 -0.29 -0.11 -0.96 -0.23 -10.11 

CBRE2 26.7 1.77 12.86 19.41 3.58 7.93 2.31

Headline RPI +5% pa (CBRE2) 2.23 5.80 7.78 9.30 9.48 8.34

Excess return -0.45 7.06 11.63 -5.72 -1.55 -6.03 

*All Portfolio and Composite returns are Gross of Fees. For time periods in excess of 1 year the performance returns are annualised.

Performance (%) *

-1.19  

3.94  

2.97  

9.77  

-3.17  

1.86  
1.57  1.77  

-4.00  

-2.00  

0.00  

2.00  

4.00  

6.00  

8.00  

10.00  

12.00  

Edinburgh Partners Blackrock Alliance Bernstein 

Re Alliance Bernstein 
PPIP Royal London Barings CBRE1  CBRE2 

Manager Quarterly Returns 

 5Page 27



Portfolio Comparison for Quarter 3, 2012

Portfolio Name
Current Market 

Value

Portfolio 

Weight

Portfolio Return 

(%)

Benchmark 

Return (%)

Excess 

Return (%)

Current 

Contribution to 

Return

Total Plan 1,858,653,220 100.00% 1.67 1.59 0.08

Edinburgh Partners 259,240 0.01% (1.19) (0.35) (0.84) (0.26)

Blackrock 397,277,277 21.37% 3.94 5.48 (1.54) 0.82

Blackrock (Passive Equity) 526,232,986 28.31% 3.89 3.86 0.03 0.87

Royal London 363,418,522 19.55% (3.17) (3.04) (0.13) (0.65)

Alliance Bernstein 290,342,385 15.62% 2.97 1.17 1.80 0.43

Re Alliance Bernstein PPIP 643,629 0.03% 9.77 0.92 8.85 0.10

Barings 152,047,336 8.18% 1.86 1.17 0.69 0.15

CBRE1 101,030,533 5.44% 1.57 2.23 (0.66) 0.09

CBRE2 26,656,565 1.43% 1.77 2.23 (0.45) 0.03

JPMSL Transition Account 714,605 0.04% (5.75) - - (0.28)

Transition Account 30,142 0.00% 8.88 - - 0.37

Portfolio Comparison  for Year to Date, 2012

Portfolio Name
Current Market 

Value

Portfolio 

Weight

Portfolio Return 

(%)

Benchmark 

Return (%)

Excess 

Return (%)

Current 

Contribution to 

Return

Total Plan 1,858,653,220 100.00% 4.28 4.71 (0.43)

Edinburgh Partners 259,240 0.01% 0.89 6.22 (5.33) 0.56

Blackrock 397,277,277 21.37% 8.45 10.86 (2.40) 1.62

Blackrock (Passive Equity) 526,232,986 28.31% - - - 0.73

Royal London 363,418,522 19.55% (3.91) (3.96) 0.05 (0.87)

Alliance Bernstein 290,342,385 15.62% 6.91 3.70 3.21 0.99

Re Alliance Bernstein PPIP 643,629 0.03% 32.45 2.95 29.50 0.33

Barings 152,047,336 8.18% 4.46 3.70 0.77 0.37

CBRE1 101,030,533 5.44% 5.51 5.80 (0.29) 0.27

CBRE2 26,656,565 1.43% 12.86 5.80 7.06 0.19

JPMSL Transition Account 714,605 0.04% - - - (0.28)

Transition Account 30,142 0.00% - - - 0.37

Blackrock 

21.4% 

Blackrock (Passive 

Equity) 

28.3% Royal London 

19.6% 

Alliance Bernstein 

15.6% 

Re Alliance Bernstein 

PPIP 

0.0% 

Barings 

8.2% 

CBRE1  

5.4% 

CBRE2 

1.4% 

Manager Allocation 

 6Page 28



Copyright ©2012 JPMorgan Chase & Co. All rights reserved. 

 

This report is provided exclusively for the purpose of assisting the customer in monitoring the 

investment performance of its accounts.  J.P. Morgan is providing a reporting service to the 

customer to assist it in the management of the accounts and, in doing so, is not acting in a 

fiduciary capacity for the accounts.  J.P. Morgan has no responsibility for the selection, 

monitoring or termination of any investment manager with respect to any of the accounts.  

The reports are not intended to be considered the rendering of investment advice or in any 

way to influence any investment decisions or the selection of any investment managers for 

the accounts.  The customer assumes sole responsibility for its use of the reports.

 

This report contains information that is the property of J.P. Morgan and/or its content 

providers, and is intended for use by the investment officers of our institutional clients. This 

report may not be copied, published, or used in whole or in part with third-parties for any 

purposes other than expressly authorized by J.P. Morgan.

 

The information furnished in this report may contain data obtained from third-party sources 

that J.P. Morgan believes to be reliable. However, J.P. Morgan makes no warranty, express 

or implied, concerning the accuracy or completeness of third-party data.  Where J.P. Morgan 

relies on accounting, pricing and associated security data – or instructions for what accounts 

comprise composites – by the customer or its third party administrators, J.P. Morgan takes no 

responsibility for the accuracy of such information.

 

Third-party data is the intellectual property of those vendors and is subject to restrictions 

contained in the licenses, which J.P. Morgan cannot unilaterally change.  If the third party 

supplier adds additional restrictions to data use, J.P. Morgan shall use reasonable efforts to 

notify the customer of such changes in writing.  Customer's continued use of the report after 

receipt of notice shall constitute customer's acceptance of the revised usage provision.

 

The information contained in this report may be subject to change from time to time without 

prior notice to the Customer, for reasons including, but not limited to, the subsequent restating 

of accounting information or index returns.

 

The information furnished in this report does not constitute the provision of ‘financial product 

advice’ as defined under the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) and does not take into account the 

financial situation, needs or objectives of individuals in Australia. 

 

The information furnished in this report is available in New Zealand solely to persons who are 

wholesale clients for the purposes of the Financial Advisers Act 2008. If you do not meet this 

criterion, you are not entitled to this report.

 

The Global Industry Classification Standard ("GICS") was developed by and is the exclusive 

property and a service mark of Morgan Stanley Capital International Inc. ("MSCI") and 

Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. ("S&P") and is licensed for 

use by The JPMorgan Chase & Co. and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Neither MSCI, S&P, 

nor any other party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any GICS classifications 

makes any express or implied warranties or representations with respect to such standard or 

classification (or the results to be obtained by the use thereof), and all such parties hereby 

expressly disclaim all warranties of originality, accuracy, completeness, merchantability and 

fitness for a particular purpose with respect to any of such standard or classification. Without 

limiting any of the foregoing, in no event shall MSCI, S&P, any of their affiliates or any third 

party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any GICS classifications have any liability 

for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential or any other damages (including lost 

profits) even if notified of the possibility of such damages.

 

Standard and Poor's including its subsidiary corporations ("S&P") is a division of the McGraw-

Hill Companies, Inc. Reproduction of S&P Index Alerts in any form is prohibited except with 

the prior written permission of S&P. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error 

by S&P sources, S&P or others, S&P does not guarantee the accuracy, adequacy, 

completeness or availability of any information and is not responsible for any errors or 

omissions or for the results obtained from the use of such information. S&P gives not express 

or implied warranties, including, but not limited to, any warranties or merchantability or fitness 

for a particular purpose or use. In no event shall S&P be liable for any indirect, special or 

consequential damages in connection with subscribers or others' use of S&P Index Alerts.

 

MSCI makes no express or implied warranties or representations and shall have no liability 

whatsoever with respect to any MSCI data contained herein.  The MSCI data may not be 

further redistributed or used as a basis for other indices or any securities or financial products.  

This report is not approved, reviewed or produced by MSCI.

FTSE ® is a trade mark of London Stock Exchange Plc and The Financial Times Limited and 

is used by FTSE under license. All rights in the FTSE Indices vest in FTSE and/or its 

licensors. Neither FTSE nor its licensors accept any liability for any errors or omissions in the 

FTSE Indices or underlying data.

The Industry Classification Benchmark is a joint product of FTSE International Limited and 

Dow Jones & Company, Inc. and has been licensed for use. "FTSE" is a trade and service 

mark of London Stock Exchange and The Financial Times Limited. "Dow Jones" and "DJ" are 

trade and service marks of Dow Jones & Company Inc. FTSE and Dow Jones do not accept 

any liability to any person for any loss or damage arising out of any error or omission in the 

ICB.

 

The Dow Jones Wilshire IndexesSM are calculated, distributed and marketed by Dow Jones 

& Company, Inc. pursuant to an agreement between Dow Jones and Wilshire and have been 

licensed for use. All content of the Dow Jones Wilshire IndexesSM © 2012 Dow Jones & 

Company, Inc. & Wilshire Associates Incorporated.

Frank Russell Company ("FRC") is the source and owner of the Russell Index data contained 

or reflected in this material and all trademarks and copyrights related thereto.  The 

presentation may contain confidential information and unauthorized use, disclosure, copying, 

dissemination or redistribution is strictly prohibited. This is a USER presentation of the Russell 

Index data.  Frank Russell Company is not responsible for the formatting or configuration of 

this material or for any inaccuracy in USER's presentation thereof.

The Merrill Lynch Indices are used with permission. Copyright 2012, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, 

Fenner & Smith Incorporated. All rights reserved. The Merrill Lynch Indices may not be 

copied, used, or distributed without Merrill Lynch's prior written approval. Merrill Lynch does 

not guarantee the quality, accuracy and/or completeness of the Merrill Lynch indices or any 

data included therein or derived therefrom and shall not be liable to any third party in 

connection with their use.

 

© UBS 2012. All rights reserved. The name UBS Global Convertible Bond Index and the 

names of the related UBS AG sub-indices (together the “UBS Indices”) are proprietary to UBS 

AG (“UBS”). UBS and MACE Advisers Ltd (the UBS Global Convertible Bond Index 

Calculation Agent) are together the “Index Parties”.

 

© IPD (Investment Property Databank Ltd.) 2012 All rights conferred by law of copyright, by 

virtue of international copyright conventions and all other intellectual property laws are 

reserved by IPD. No part of the Mercer / IPD Australian Pooled Property Fund Index - 

Wholesale Core may be reproduced or transmitted, in any form or by any means, without the 

prior written consent of IPD.  This index is neither appropriate nor authorized by IPD for use 

as a benchmark for portfolio or manager performance, or as the basis for any business 

decision. IPD gives no warranty or representation that the use of this information will achieve 

any particular result for you.  Neither Mercer nor IPD has any liability for any losses, damages, 

costs or expenses suffered by any person as a result of any reliance on this information.

 

The NZX indices referred to in this report are the property of NZX Limited (“NZX”).  Any 

adaptation, reproduction or transmittance of the data or contents of the NZX indices in any 

form or by any means other than for private use is prohibited without the prior written 

permission of NZX.  NZX and its affiliates, directors, officers, agents or employees do not 

make any warranty of any kind, either express or implied, as to the accuracy of the content of 

the NZX indices or fitness for a particular purpose or use.  NZX hereby disclaims all liability to 

the maximum extent permitted by law in relation to the NZX indices. Neither NZX, its 

subsidiary companies, nor their directors, officers, agents or employees shall, under any 

circumstances, be liable to any person for any direct, indirect, consequential, incidental, 

special or punitive damages, howsoever arising (whether in negligence or otherwise), out of 

or in connection with the content, any omission from the content, any use of the content or 

any actions taken or reliance by any person thereon.

Barclays Capital is the source of its respective indices.

Citigroup is the source of its respective indices.

Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited is the source of its respective indices.

DAX indices are registered trademarks of Deutsche Borse AG.

© TSX Copyright 2012 TSX Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Trust Universe Comparison Service ® and TUCS ®.

Fixed income risk characteristics provided by Blackrock Solutions.

The calculation of Value-at-Risk requires numerous assumptions that should be kept in mind 

when interpreting it. These limitations include but are not limited to the following: VaR 

measures may not appropriately convey the magnitude of sudden and unexpected extreme 

events; historical data that forms the basis of VaR may fail to predict content and future 

market volatility; our VaR methodology does not fully reflect the effects of market illiquidity (the 

inability to sell or hedge a position over a relatively long period) and does not incorporate 

credit risk events that may affect its value.

 

The information furnished in this report may be based in part on services provided by 

Algorithmics (U.S.), Inc. and/or its affiliates (“Algorithmics”).  Algorithmics does not make any 

express or implied warranty or representation regarding its services or contributions to this 

report, including any warranty of originality, accuracy, completeness, merchantability or fitness 

for a particular purpose, nor shall its services or contributions to this report be construed as 

providing any financial advice, auditing, accounting, appraisal, regulatory or compliance 

services.  Algorithmics is not responsible for the data or assumptions that are processed 

through Algorithmics’ services nor can Algorithmics guarantee the accuracy or validity of data 

received from third parties that enables the service to generate the information contained in 

this report.  In no event shall Algorithmics have any liability for any direct, indirect, special, 

punitive, consequential or any other damages arising out or relating to its services or 

contributions to this report, or your reliance thereon.  By accepting this report, the recipient is 

agreeing to the foregoing limitations on Algorithmics’ responsibility and liability.

7
Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORTS/PENSION FUND/PT22 

Pension Fund Committee 
 

4 December 2012 
 

Pension Fund Investments 

 

 
 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 

Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of the report is to inform Members of the overall value of the 
Pension Fund as at 30 September 2012 and of any additional sums available 
to the Managers for further investment or amounts to be withdrawn from 
Managers. 

 
Value of the Fund 
 

2. Reports from the six appointed Managers: 
 

• Alliance Bernstein 

• Barings 

• Black Rock 

• CBRE 

• Edinburgh Partners and  

• Royal London  
 
are included in the papers, but for information, the Value of the Fund as at 30 
September 2012 was £ 1,858,700,000 . The Value of the Fund at 30 June 
was £1,827,960,000, an increase of £ 30,740,000 in the quarter. 

 
Allocation of New Money 
 

3. Table 1 details the working cash balance position of the Fund, cash flow for 
the last four quarters, and an estimated cash flow for the quarter ending 31 
December 2012.  This table includes only cash held by Durham County 
Council Pension Fund Bank Account.  It does not include cash balances held 
by the Managers of £18,877,602. 
 

4. In determining the amount of cash to be allocated to Managers at the quarter 
ended 30 September, the un-invested cash balance at the end of the previous 
quarter, together with interest received in that quarter, is considered.  This 
does not include cash currently held by Fund Managers. 

 
5. The amount allocated to each Manager is subject to the need to retain money, 

in the Durham County Council Pension Fund Bank account to meet the 
Fund's net cash outflow.  After taking these issues into account, it is 
recommended that no money be added to the sums to be allocated to the 
Managers for investment in the quarter. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 31



 

Fund Rebalancing 
 
6. Normally Fund Rebalancing takes place on a quarterly basis, but, it has been 

suspended until the results of the Strategy Review are put into operation. 
 

Cash Flow Forecast 2012/13 
 
7. Table 2 shows the forecasted cash flow for the Pension Fund for 2012/13. 
 
8. The table shows that the Pension Fund Bank Account is estimated to be in 

deficit in each quarter of the year.  However, it should be noted that this is 
only in respect of the bank account held by the Pension Fund; income 
received from investments is currently held by Managers.  When this is taken 
into account, the Pension Fund has a positive cash flow. 

 
9. The quarterly rebalancing exercise will be the mechanism by which cash can 

be moved from Managers to the Pension Fund if the assumptions that have 
been used in calculating the forecasted cash flow are realised. 

 
10. The assumptions which have been used to calculate the cash flow forecast 

are: 
 

• Income for 2012/13 estimated at £35m based on last year’s actual 
figures to March 2012. 

  

• Income is profiled to be received in the same pattern as last year i.e.  
o Quarter ended 30 June    34% 
o Quarter ended 30 Sept    27% 
o Quarter ended 31 Dec.    18% and 
o Quarter ended 31.Mar.    21%. 

 

• Increases in contributions in line with the Actuarial Valuation are 
included. 

 

• ‘Transfers in’ estimated at £1m per quarter.  It is anticipated that 
transfers in will continue as LGPS will remain relatively attractive to 
employees. 

 

• Pensions increase will be at broadly the same level as 2011/12. 
 

• Payroll Paysheets are forecast to increase by £100,000 per quarter.  
This is the line that records payments to pensioners.  This line will alter 
if there are large numbers of retirements in the employing authorities, 
but it is anticipated that as the County Council’s position has been 
taken into account, as the largest employer in the Fund, this should not 
be materially different to forecast. 

 

• Payable Paysheets are forecast at a constant level throughout the 
year, but this can be the most volatile line.  Included in this line are 
Fund Managers’ fees and payments of lump sums.  The assumption 

Page 32



 

here errs on the side of prudence, in that this is an average figure 
taken from previous quarterly payments. 

 
11. This is an early indication of the likely impact on the Pension Fund’s cash flow 

forecast which will be reviewed each quarter and refined to take into account 
new information as it becomes available. 

 
Recommendation 
 
12. Members are asked to note the information contained in this report and it is 

recommended that no further allocation of cash be made to Managers. 
 
 

Contact:  Hilary Appleton  Tel: 03000 266239  

Page 33



 

 
 

TABLE 1 
 
Cash Flow – Estimated and Actual for the period 31 December 2011 to 31 December 2012 
 
 

Quarter Ended 31.12.11 31.03.12 30.06.12 30.09.12 31.12.12  

 Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual  Estimate 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)  

 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Contributions - DCC 16,653,000 16,562,149 16,600,000 16,011,611 16,600,000 14,486,382 18,306,382 18,136,224 16,400,000 

  - Other 6,500,000 6,945,284 8,600,000 8,682,517 6,900,000 6,818,377 6,700,000 7,038,163 6,800,000 

Pensions Increase 1,130,000 1,210,532 1,200,000 1,230,612 1,200,000 1,215,541 1,200,000 1,210,577 1,200,000 

Transfer Values 1,500,000 2,698,949 2,000,000 2,302,354 1,200,000 1,317,438 1,000,000 1,607,552 1,000,000 

Month end uncleared 
items 

300,000 446,666 900,000 1,422,165 900,000 866,934 1,000,000 1,338,851 1,000,000 

Gross Dividend & Interest 40,000 39,745 36,000 36,007 60,000 60,013 60,000 0 120,000 

Total Income 26,123,000 27,903,325 29,336,000 29,685,266 26,860,000 24,764,685 28,226,382 29,331,367 26,520,000 

Payroll Paysheets 19,000,000 19,229,113 19,300,000 19,394,550 19,400,000 20,200,100 20,200,000 20,428,758 20,500,000 

Payables Paysheets 
  (incl. Managers’ fees) 

10,000,000 7,087,332 8,000,000 9,971,636 8,000,000 7,433,343 10,000,000 8,269,280 9,000,000 

Total Expenditure 29,000,000 26,316,445 27,300,000 29,366,186 27,400,000 27,633,443 30,200,000 28,698,038 29,500,000 

Surplus / (Deficit) (2,877,000) 1,586,880 2,036,000 319,080 (540,000) (2,868,758) (1,933,618) 633,329 ( 2,980,000)  

Net Capital 
payments/(receipts) 

 7,033,969  0  0  110,000  

Balance at Bank (opening)  14,341,669  7,444,969  26,395,763  15,386,952  

Balance at Bank (closing)  7,444,969  26,395,763  15,386,952  14,024,338  

Money paid/(recovered) 
to/(from Manager) 

 0  (15,000,000)  0  0  

 

P
age 34



 

 

TABLE 2 
 
Projected Cash Flow – including dividends received by Fund Managers for the period 31 December 2012 to 31 December 2013 
 
 

Quarter Ended 31.12.12 31.03.13 30.06.13 30.09.13 31.12.13 

 Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

 £ £ £ £ £ 

Contributions - DCC 16,400,000 18,800,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 

  - Other 6,800,000 7,100,000 7,250,000 7,250,000 7,250,000 

      

Pensions Increase 1,200,000 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,100,000 

Transfer Values 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 

Month end uncleared 
items 

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 

Gross Dividend & Interest 120,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 

Total Income 26,520,000 29,060,000 30,410,000 30,410,000 30,410,000 

Payroll Paysheets 20,500,000 20,600,000 20,700,000 20,800,000 20,900,000 

Payables Paysheets 
  (incl. Managers’ fees) 

9,000,000 12,000,000 11,000,000 11,000,000 11,000,000 

Total Expenditure 29,500,000 32,600,000 31,700,000 31,800,000 31,900,000 

Surplus / (Deficit) (2,980,000) (3,540,000) (1,290,000) (1,390,000) (1,490,000) 

Dividends Received by 
Managers 

6,300,000 7,350,000 11,900,000 9,450,000 6,300,000 

Net Cash Flow Position 3,320,000 3,810,000 10,610,000 8,060,000 4,810,000 

 
 
 
 

P
age 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Pension Fund Committee 
 

4 December 2012 
 
Record-keeping – Pensions Regulator 
best practice guidelines 

 

 
 

Report of Don McLure, Corporate Director, Resources 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1 The purpose of the report is 

 

• To advise Members of best practice guidelines issued by the 
Pensions Regulator on record-keeping and the extent to 
which the Council currently complies with those guidelines, 
and; 

• To ask Members to agree to the Pension Fund 
commissioning a tracing agency to trace deferred members 
who have changed address without informing the pension 
scheme, and to compare the pensions database against the 
national register of deaths. 

 
Background 
 
2 The Pensions Regulator is the UK regulator of work-based 

pension schemes and is empowered by the government to 
regulate work-based pensions. 
 

3 One of the Pensions Regulator’s objectives is to promote the 
good administration of work-based pension schemes, and as part 
of this it has set targets for pension schemes to improve their 
‘common’ data  records this includes data such as name, 
address, date of birth and National Insurance number. For new 
data created or amended after June 2010, the target to be met is 
100% of common data to be in place; and for data created before 
June 2010, the target is 95% 
 

4 The Pensions Regulator expects schemes to have assessed their 
data quality by 2012 and to put in place measures necessary to 
ensure the quality targets on common data are met. 
 

Analysis of Common Data 
 

5 Appendix A shows a summary of the results of an analysis of the 
current data quality of the Durham County Council Pension Fund. 
This shows that 8 out of the 11 data quality items are 100% 

Agenda Item 7

Page 37



complete for data created both before and after June 2010. The 
three areas with less than 100% are as follows: 
 
National Insurance Number 
 
57 out of 45,662 records do not have a valid National Insurance 
Number. These are all dependants and are either widows or 
widowers who have not provided a valid National Insurance 
number, or individuals in receipt of a children’s pension who have 
recently reached age 16 and not informed us of their National 
Insurance Number. We have recently contacted HM Revenue & 
Customs to ask for the correct National Insurance Numbers for all 
these individuals and expect to receive this information within the 
next month or so. 
 
Post Code 
 
Only 93.09% of pre-June 2010 records and 99.39% of post-June 
2010 records have a post code. Where we have a valid address 
this issue can be resolved through using the Royal Mail’s 
postcode finder function on its website. This approach is 
underway now and over the coming weeks we expect to have 
complete postcode information for all records with UK addresses. 
 
Address 
 
Only 96.64% of pre-June 2010 records and 99.39% of post-June 
2010 records have address information. There are a total of 1,319 
individuals who have left employment and the pension scheme 
and have subsequently changed address without informing the 
pension scheme of their new address.  
 

Tracing Addresses 
 

6 Our current approach in cases where a scheme member has 
moved and not advised the pension scheme is to trace the 
member’s address using a tracing agency shortly before they 
reach age 60.  This allows us to write to them with details of the 
benefits payable to them at 60.  An alternative approach would be 
to undertake an exercise to trace all the addresses now and write 
to the individuals to advise them to inform us if they move again 
in future.  
 

7 An advantage of this approach is that it would improve the quality 
of data held by the scheme. Depending on the exact type of 
analysis carried out it would also be possible to combine this with 
a comparison of our entire database with the national register of 
deaths, so potentially identifying cases of overpayment which 
may not have been picked up by the National Fraud Initiative. 
 

Page 38



8 Possible disadvantages include the cost of such an exercise 
(which is estimated to be in the low thousands) and the fact that 
there would be nothing to stop these individuals losing touch with 
the pension scheme again should they move again before 
retirement. However, on balance it is felt worthwhile to undertake 
a combined exercise to trace missing addresses for deferred 
members and to also compare the whole database against the 
national register of deaths. 
 

Recommendation 

Members are asked to note this report and to agree to the 
Pension Fund commissioning a tracing agency to trace deferred 
members who have changed address without informing the 
pension scheme, and to compare the pensions database against 
the national register of deaths. 

 
 
 

Contact: Nick Orton Tel:  0191 383 4429 

Page 39



Appendix A – Common Data Report 

Numerical information: 
 

 
Common data checking:  

Data item  Pre-June 2010 data  Fails  % Complete Post-June 2010 data  Fails  % Complete 

NI Number  37,897 51 99.87% 7,765 6 99.92% 

Surname  37,897 0  100% 7,765 0  100% 

Forename/initials  37,897 0 100% 7,765 0 100% 

Sex  37,897 0  100% 7,765 0  100% 

Date of birth  37,897 0  100% 7,765 0  100% 

Date started pensionable service/policy/contributions  37,897 0 100% 7,765 0 100% 

Expected retirement / maturity/target retirement date  37,897 0 100% 7,765 0 100% 

Membership status  37,897 0  100% 7,765 0  100% 

Last status event  37,897 0 100% 7,765 0 100% 

Address  37,897 1,272 96.64% 7,765 47 99.39% 

Postcode  37,897 2,620 93.09% 7,765 47 99.39% 

Total   3,943    100  

 
Total number of records failing one or more tests: 2,724 = 5.97% failed 

Membership statistics (November 2012)  

Total active members  16,838 

Total deferred members  12,429 

Total pension in payment members  16,395 of which: 

Member pensioners  13,716 

Spouse/dependant/civil partner/ child pensioners  2,679 

Total Membership 45,662 of which: 

Pre-June 2010 data 37,897 

Post-June 2010 data 7,765 

P
age 40



 

 
Agenda Item No.  

 

 
Pension Fund Committee 
 

4 December 2012 
 

Terms of Reference 
 

 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1 To inform Members of the progress in determining terms of reference 

for the Pension Fund Committee. 
 
Background 
 
2 The Pension Fund Committee has responsibility delegated from the 

Council to discharge the powers and duties arising from Section 7 of 
the Superannuation Act 1972 and Regulations made following from 
this, including: 

 

• approval of applications from bodies seeking admission to the 
Local Government Pension Scheme; 

 

• appointment of external investment managers and advisers. 
 

3 An Internal Audit report considering the Governance and Funding of 
the Pension Fund was presented to this committee on 6 December 
2011 by the Internal Auditor in order to provide assurance over the 
governance arrangements in place for the Pension Fund.  The report 
recommended that a review should take place to clarify that the 
responsibilities of the Pension Fund Committee were clearly defined 
and understood. 
 

4 The audit approach involved reviewing documentation provided by the 
Fund, as well as interviews with County Council officers and members 
of the Pension Fund Committee 
 

5 This report gave the committee only limited assurance and stated: 
 
Our review has highlighted a number of areas that we believe officers 
and members should consider. These are as follows: 

 

• There is a lack of clarity regarding the roles and responsibilities 
of the Pension Fund Committee, reflected in the lack of a formal 
terms of reference for the Committee; 

Agenda Item 8

Page 41



 

• The level of engagement with external audit and, until recently, 
internal audit has been low; 

• Meeting agenda items tend to be heavily weighted towards 
investments, whilst the meeting minutes do not always cover all 
relevant information; 

• Members are not always seen as providing appropriate 
challenge within Pension Fund Committee meetings; 

• The level of training of members and attendance at Committee 
meetings is not always seen as adequate; 

• There is no process for the approval of the Pension Fund 
accounts and annual report by the Committee; and 

• There should be greater oversight of funding risks around 
bodies in the Fund defaulting. 

 
6 The establishment of clear Terms of Reference for the Committee was 

a recommendation of the report and this is considered to be necessary 
as a precursor before all the other recommendations of the Internal 
Auditor’s report are to be implemented. 
 

Delegated Authority 
 
7 The delegation of authority from the County Council is wide-ranging 

and covers the management of all of the Pension Fund’s activities.  
Any changes to this delegation would require the consideration and 
agreement of the Constitution Working Group. 
 

8 No changes are suggested to be made to this delegation. 
 

Terms of Reference 
 

9 In order to discharge the functions delegated to the Pension Fund 
Committee, Operational Terms of Reference should be established. 
 

10 The Operational Terms of Reference should provide clarity to the 
members of the Pension Fund Committee in a number of areas: 
 
• Roles and Responsibilities of Members 

• High level objectives of the Committee 

• Authority of the Committee 

• Composition of the Committee 

• Detailed Terms of Reference to achieve the High Level 
Objectives 

• Meetings 

• Programme of work 

• Performance and Review 
 
A draft Terms of Reference is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

Page 42



 

Actions 
 
11 Before formally agreeing the Terms of Reference, it would be beneficial 

for Committee members to review the draft and consider amendments. 
The information requirements of members need to be considered and 
documented in the Terms of Reference so that Members can gain 
assurance that the functions of the committee are being addressed. 
 

12 As the Terms of Reference will determine the future programme of 
work of the committee, it is recommended that a workshop session is 
arranged to enable members to review the draft terms of reference and 
develop a final document that can then be agreed by the County 
Council. 

 
Recommendations  
 
13 It is recommended that: 
 

• Members note the draft operational Terms of Reference 
 

• A workshop session is arranged to agree the Terms of 
Reference and the information requirements of the Committee 
for the future. 

 
 
 
 
 
Background papers 
 
(a) Pension Fund Committee – 6 December 2011 – Internal Audit 

Progress Report 

(b) Durham County Council Constitution 

(c) CIPFA – Pensions Finance – Knowledge and Skills Framework: 
Technical Guidance for Pensions Practitioners in the Public Sector 

(d) CIPFA – Pensions Finance – Knowledge and Skills Framework: 
Technical Guidance for Elected Representatives and Non-executives in 
the Public Sector 

(e) CIPFA – Investment Decision Making and Disclosure in the Local 
Government Pension Scheme: A guide to the Application of the Myners 
Principles 

 
 

Contact: Hilary Appleton     Tel: 03000 266239 

 

Page 43



 

 
Appendix 1:  Draft Operation Terms of Reference 
 

Pension Fund Committee Operational Terms of 
Reference  

 
 

1 Authority 
 

1.1. Durham County Council, acting as Administering Authority for 
the Pension Fund has determined to delegate all functions 
relating to the maintenance of the Pension Fund to the Pension 
Fund Committee. 
 

1.2. Under the terms of the County Council’s Constitution, the 
Pension Fund Committee has been delegated the following 
terms of reference: 

 
1.2.1. Powers and duties arising from Section 7 of the 
 Superannuation Act 1972 and Regulations made 
 thereunder including: 

 

• approval of applications from bodies seeking admission 
to the Local Government Pension Scheme; 

 

• appointment of external investment managers and 
advisers. 
 

1.3. In order to deliver the terms of reference delegated, further 
detailed functions of the committee need to be identified.  These 
will be the Operational Terms of Reference for the Committee. 

 

2 Composition 
 

2.1. The structure of the Pension Fund Committee is as follows: 
 

 
Body/ category of bodies represented 

Number of Committee 
Members 

Durham County Council 11 

Darlington Borough Council 2 

Colleges 1 

Other Statutory Bodies 1 

Admitted Bodies 1 

Member representatives 2 

Total    18 

plus non-voting union observers 2 

 
2.2. The allocation of members to the Committee broadly reflects the 

number of active members, pensioners and deferred pensioners 

Page 44



 

each of the larger employers has within the Fund. The two trade 
union representatives are invited as observers.  

 
2.3. The representatives from Durham County and Darlington 

Borough Councils are appointed by decisions of the respective 
councils. Representatives of the colleges, other statutory bodies, 
and admitted bodies are selected by the Committee from 
nominations made by the employers and are appointed for 4 
years. The two scheme member representatives are selected by 
the Committee from applications received from the membership 
following advertisement in the newsletter: one from active 
scheme members and one from pensioner members. 

 
2.4. All members of the Committee, union observers and 

independent advisers are given full access to papers and are 
allowed to participate in meetings. 

 
2.5. All members appointed to the Committee have voting rights. 

Union observers and advisers do not have voting rights as they 
do not act as formal members of the Committee. 

 
2.6. The Pension Fund Committee meets four times a year and 

occasionally holds special meetings when required. The 
Pension Fund Committee also holds an Annual General Meeting 
to which all employers are invited.  

 
2.7. The quorum for each regular meeting of the Committee is 5. 

 
2.8. Minutes of the Committee are reported under the existing 

County Council Committee framework. 
 

2.9. Detailed performance reports will remain confidential items on 
Committee agenda as will any other item deemed as such by 
the Chairman although the Committee will aim to operate as 
transparently as feasible. 

 

3 Background 
 
3.1. Each LGPS Administering Authority should have a designated 

group of elected members appointed to a committee which has 
been assigned the responsibility for the management and 
administration of the pension fund. 
 

3.2. The committee should be governed by specific terms of 
reference and operational procedures that define those 
responsible for taking decisions. 

 
3.3. The committee should review its structure and composition 

regularly and provide each member with a copy of the terms of 
reference and operational procedures. 

 

Page 45



 

3.4. The committee may consider establishing sub-committees 
and/or panels where necessary to take responsibility for 
progressing significant areas of activity between meetings of the 
committee. 

 
3.5. The committee should obtain proper advice at reasonable 

intervals from suitably qualified persons, including officers and 
external investment managers.  The chief finance officer should 
assess the need for proper advice and recommend to the 
committee when such advice is necessary from an external 
adviser.  The committee should ensure that it has sufficient 
internal resources, and where necessary external resources to 
carry out its responsibilities effectively. 

 
3.6. The chief finance officer should have responsibility for the 

provision of a training plan for members to help them to make 
effective decisions, and to ensure that they are fully aware of 
their statutory and fiduciary responsibilities, and regularly 
reminded of their stewardship role. 

 
3.7. Papers and related documentation should be clear and 

comprehensive and circulated to members of the committee 
sufficiently in advance of the meeting to allow them to be read 
and understood. 
 

4 Operational Terms of Reference 
 

4.1. To prepare, monitor and review policy documents including the: 
 

• Funding Strategy Statement 

• Statement of Investment Principles 

• Governance Policy 

• Communications Policy 

• Administration Strategy 
 
4.2.  To appoint and terminate: 

 

• investment managers 

• custodian 

• actuary 

• independent external advisers 

• Additional Voluntary Contribution (AVC) providers, and 

• other contracts related to the management of the Pension 
Fund 

 
4.3. To determine the overall investment strategy and strategic asset 

allocation, ensuring that investments are sufficiently diversified, 
not over concentrated in any one type of investment and that the 
pension fund is invested in suitable types of investments; 

 

Page 46



 

4.4. To review the resources allocated to investment managers on a 
regular basis; 

 
4.5. To monitor and review, on a quarterly basis, the investment 

managers’ performance against established benchmarks and 
satisfy themselves on the investment managers’ expertise and 
the quality of their internal systems and controls; 

 
4.6. To take appropriate action in cases of unsatisfactory 

performance of the investment managers and independent 
external advisers; 

 
4.7. To obtain, and have due regard to, professional advice from the 

fund managers, investment advisers, officers and the fund 
actuary as appropriate; 

 
4.8. To monitor the cash flow forecasts of the fund on a quarterly 

basis; 
 

4.9. To review policy on social, environmental and ethical matters 
and on the exercise of rights, including voting rights. 

 
4.10. To approve, apply and decide upon employers joining and 

leaving the Fund. To consider, and if appropriate, approve 
applications of employers to become admitted bodies to the 
fund. 

 
4.11. To review the Annual Report and Accounts of the Pension Fund 

and report its findings to the Audit Committee, where the 
Accounts are approved. 

 
4.12. To approve the annual internal audit plan and monitor progress 

on it’s delivery. 
 
4.13. To review and monitor the Pension Fund Risk Register. 
 
4.14. To consider all other relevant matters to the investment and 

administration of the fund. 
 

5 Key Responsibilities 
 

5.1. The Pension Fund Investment Managers are responsible for: 
 

•  The investment of the Pension Fund assets in respect of which 
they are appointed in compliance with applicable rules and 
legislation, the constraints imposed by the Statement of 
Investment Principles and the detailed Investment Management 
Agreement covering their portion of the Pension Fund’s assets; 

 

•  Stock selection within asset classes; 
 

Page 47



 

•  Preparation of quarterly reports, including a review of investment 
performance; 

 

•  Attending meetings of the Pension Fund Committee as requested. 
 

5.2. The Global Custodian is responsible for: 
 

•  Its own compliance with prevailing legislation; 
 

•  Providing the administering authority with monthly or quarterly 
valuations of the Pension Fund’s assets and details of all 
transactions during the quarter; 

 

•  Collection of income, tax reclaims, exercising corporate 
administration and cash management; 

 

•  Such other services as the Pension Fund shall procure, for 
example, in connection with performance measurement and 
reporting or fund accounting 

 
5.3. The Independent Advisers are responsible for: 

 
•  Assisting the Corporate Director, Resources and Pension Fund 

Committee in determining: 
- the overall investment strategy 
- the strategic asset allocation  
- that the Pension Fund is invested in suitable types of 

investment  
 and ensuring that investments are sufficiently diversified. 
 

•  Assisting the Corporate Director, Resources and Pension Fund 
Committee in the preparation and review of Policy documents; 

 

•  Assisting the Corporate Director, Resources and Pension Fund 
Committee in their regular monitoring of the investment 
managers’ performance; 

 

•  Assisting the Corporate Director, Resources and Pension Fund 
Committee in the selection and appointment of investment 
managers, custodians and Pension Fund Actuary; 

 

•  Advising and assisting the Corporate Director, Resources and the 
Pension Fund Committee on other investment related issues, 
which may arise from time to time;  

 

•  Providing continuing education and training to the Pension Fund 
Committee. 

 
5.4. The Actuary is responsible for: 

 

Page 48



 

•  Providing advice as to the structure of the Pension Fund’s 
liabilities, the maturity of the Pension Fund and its funding level in 
order to aid the Pension Fund Committee in balancing the short 
term and long-term objectives of the Pension Fund 

 

•  Undertaking the statutory triennial valuation of the Fund’s assets 
and liabilities. 

 
5.5. The Corporate Director Resources has delegated authority: 

 
•   To exercise the County Council’s function as administering 

authority relating to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 
 

•  To exercise those discretions under the Local Government 
Pension Scheme Regulations as appear from time to time in 
Pension Fund Statements of Policy; 

 

•  To authorise, in cases of urgency, the taking of any action by a 
Manager of the Pension Fund this is necessary in order to protect 
the interests of the Fund. 

 

•  To take any decision relating to the investment or management of 
the Pension Fund that cannot reasonably await the next meeting 
of the Pension Fund Committee. 

 

•  To maintain all necessary accounts and records in relation to the 
Pension Fund, including the calculation of and payment of 
benefits, reconciliation and investment of contributions, 
preparation of the Annual Accounts and preparation of 
membership data for actuarial valuation purposes. 

 

•  To maintain the system of internal control. 
 

•  To manage the triennial valuation of the Pension Fund. 
 

•  To accept for admission into the Pension Fund employees of 
authorities and bodies as prescribed in Regulations including 
transferee and community Admissions which are considered as 
'exceptional circumstances', subject to an approved Admission 
Agreement, and subject to any necessary indemnities as 
appropriate. 

 

•  To be the local referee for disputes under the Local Government 
Pension Scheme 

 

•  To set the appropriate funding target for the Fund under the rules 
of the Local Government Pension Scheme. 

 

•  To carry out, in consultation with the Pension Fund Committee, 
the requirement to monitor and review the investments made by 

Page 49



 

the Fund Managers and report to each meeting of the Pension 
Fund Committee on the exercise of this delegation. 

 

•  To manage cash flow, allocate funds between investment 
managers in order to ensure that the Fund’s asset allocation is 
maintained and invest the residual cash balances. 

 

•  To arrange and authorise the provision of appropriate Member 
training, including the attendance at conferences and other similar 
pension fund related events by Members of the Pension Fund 
Committee. 

 

•  To prepare and submit the necessary Policy Statements to 
Pension Fund Committee and to arrange for the implementation 
and review of those statements, strategies, policies and 
procedures, as required.  These include the Funding Strategy 
Statement 

 

•  To prepare and submit the necessary plans and principles to the 
Pension Fund Committee and to arrange for the implementation 
and review of those plans and principles, as required. These 
include the Pension Fund Annual Report and the Statement of 
Investment Principles. 

 

•  To produce as part of the Funding Strategy Statement, an 
assessment of all the specific risks that can be identified in 
relation to the management of the Pension Fund. 
 

6 Meetings 
 

6.1. The Pension Fund Committee meets four times a year and 
 occasionally holds special meetings when required. The Pension 
 Fund Committee also holds an Annual General Meeting to which all 
 employers are invited.  
 

7 Programme of Work 
 

7.1. An annual programme of work, cross referenced to the terms of 
 reference, will be agreed annually by the Pension Fund Committee 
 showing expected documents and reports to be presented and any 
 training requirements. 

 

8 Performance and Review 
 

8.1. The Pension Fund Committee will carry out an annual self-
 assessment, including a review of these terms of reference, to 
 evaluate its own performance and determine any action required to 
 improve its effectiveness. 

Page 50



 

Pension Fund Committee 
 

4 December 2012 
 

Local Government Pension Scheme: 
Investment in Partnerships – CLG 
Consultation 
 

 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 
 
Purpose of the report 
 

1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of a consultation by 
the Department for Communities and Local Government (CLG). 

 
Background 
 
2 Following the publication of the Government’s ‘Blueprint for 

Technology’ and the signing of a memorandum of understanding 
between pension industry representatives and the government on 
examining the way in which pension funds could invest in infrastructure 
projects, it was felt that the existing Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Investment and Management of Funds) Regulations 2009 
(the Regulations) may be placing a restraint on investment in this area. 
 

3 The existing Regulations are attached at Appendix 1. 
 

4 On 6 November 2012 CLG issued a consultation paper, attached at 
Appendix 2. 
 

5 This consultation is to seek views on “whether any amendment is 
necessary to remove specific barriers preventing Scheme funds from 
being invested in infrastructure investment vehicles designed to control 
risk exposure and provide both future income stream to funds and 
necessary capital input into projects intended to stimulate growth.”  
 

6 The consultation paper acknowledges that the primary responsibilities 
of local authority pension funds are to deliver the returns needed to pay 
Scheme members the pensions they have worked hard to earn, and to 
protect local taxpayers and employers from high pension costs.   
 

7 The Regulations are designed to enable effective investment strategies 
that meet these goals.  The Regulations help to minimise risk and 
protect the interest of taxpayers by requiring that funds and risks are 
spread across a number of different types of investment, and by setting 
limits on the proportion of funds that can be invested in each type of 
investment 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 51



   

 
Response to the Consultation 
 
8 The consultation is aimed principally at Local Government and has 

been circulated to all local authorities.  
 

9 The consultation period is six weeks, with a closing date for responses 
of 18 December. 
 

10 The County Council as Administering Authority intends to respond to 
CLG.  It is considered that the appropriate response in the interests of 
the Pension Fund is in favour of increasing the limit on investments in 
partnerships from 15% to 30% - Option A on page 12 of the 
consultation.   
 

11 This option allows more freedom for the Pension Fund to invest in 
partnerships of all types.  Although Option B limits the risk of 
concentration in a particular type of investment, under Option A this 
could be achieved by amendment to the Statement of Investment 
Principles, and by the Committee monitoring with the advice of its 
Advisers that the higher limit were not used in a way that would 
increase the risk of the Pension Fund through concentration of 
investments in particular categories or individual investments. 
 

12 In order to respond to other questions in the consultation, it would be 
necessary to define a new investment class.  After taking our Advisers’ 
advice, it would seem that almost any definition would invite the 
creation of investment vehicles designed to get round the spirit of the 
definition, whilst observing the letter of it. 
 

13 On balance, the option to increase the limit on investment in 
partnerships to 30% would avoid the problem of defining a new 
category whilst allowing flexibility to invest funds in infrastructure 
investment vehicles. 

 
 
Recommendation 
 

14 Members are asked to note the consultation and it is recommended 
that the Corporate Director Resources be delegated authority to 
respond to CLG on behalf of the Pension Fund as suggested in 
paragraphs 10 to 13. 
 

 

 

Contact:  Hilary Appleton  Tel: 03000 266239  

 

Page 52



   

Appendix 1 
 

S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2009 �o. 3093 

PE�SIO�S, E�GLA�D A�D WALES 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 

Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 

 
Made - - - - 24th �ovember 2009 

Laid before Parliament 1st December 2009 

Coming into force - - 1
st
 January 2010 

CONTENTS 

Preliminary 

1. Citation, commencement and application 4 

2. General definitions 4 

3. Definition of “investment” 5 

Management of pension fund 

4. Management of pension fund 6 

5. Power to borrow 7 

6. Separate bank account 7 

Investment managers 

7. Definition of “investment manager” 8 

8. Choice of investment managers 8 

9. Terms of appointment of investment managers 9 

10. Review of investment manager’s performance 9 

Investment and use of  fund money 

11. Investment of pension fund money 10 

12. Statement of investment principles 10 

13. Investments under section 11(1) of the Trustee Investments Act 1961 10 

14. Restrictions on investments 11 

15. Requirements for increased limits 11 

16. Use of fund money by an administering authority 12 

Supplementary 

17. Revocations 12 

 

 SCHEDULE 1 — TABLE OF LIMITS ON INVESTMENTS 13 

 SCHEDULE 2 — REVOCATIONS 15 

Page 53



   

These Regulations are made in exercise of the powers conferred by section 7 of, and Schedule 3 

to, the Superannuation Act 1972(
1
). 

In accordance with section 7(5) of that Act the Secretary of State has consulted (a) such 

associations of local authorities as appeared to the Secretary of State to be concerned; (b) the local 

authorities with whom consultation appeared to the Secretary of State to be desirable; and (c) such 

representatives of other persons likely to be affected by the Regulations as appeared to the 

Secretary of State to be appropriate. 

The Secretary of State makes the following Regulations: 

 

Preliminary 

Citation, commencement and application 

1.—(1) — These Regulations may be cited as the Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 and shall come into force on 1st January 

2010. 

(2) These Regulations apply in relation to England and Wales(
2
). 

General definitions 

2.—(1) In these Regulations— 

“the 2000 Act” means the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000(
3
); 

“administering authority” means a body required to maintain a pension fund under the 

Administration Regulations; 

“the Administration Regulations” means the Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Administration) Regulations 2008(
4
); 

“fund money” means money in the pension fund maintained by an administering authority; 

“proper advice”, in relation to an administering authority, means the advice of a person whom 

the authority reasonably believes to be qualified by their ability in and practical experience of 

financial matters (including any such person who is an officer of the administering authority); 

“recognised stock exchange” has the same meaning as in section 1005(1) of the Income Tax 

Act 2007(
5
); 

“securities” includes shares, stock and debentures; 

“statement of investment principles” means the statement referred to in regulation 12(1) or 

any revision of it, as appropriate; 

“stock lending arrangement” means an arrangement such as is mentioned in section 263B of 

the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992(
6
); and 

                                                           
(1) 1972 c.11. 
(2) The Secretary of State’s functions under section 7 of the Superannuation Act 1972 in so far as 
they were exercisable in relation to Scotland were devolved to Scottish Ministers by section 63 of the 
Scotland Act 1998 (c.46) and article 2 of, and Schedule 1 to, the Scotland Act 1998 (Transfer of 
Functions to Scottish Ministers etc) Order 1999 (S.I. 1999/1750). 
(3) 2000 c.8. 
(4) S.I. 2008/239, amended by S.I. 2008/1083, 2008/2425, and S.I. 2008/3245.     . 
(5) 2007 c.3; section 1005(1) was amended by paragraph 1 of Schedule 26 to the Finance Act 
2007 (c.11). 
(6) 1992 c.12; section 263B was inserted by  paragraph 5(1) of Schedule 10 to the Finance Act 
1997 (c.16). 

Page 54



   

“sub-underwriting contract” means a contract with a person who is underwriting a share issue 

to acquire the shares from that person if that person requires it. 

(2) Paragraphs (5) to (7) of regulation 3, paragraphs (2)(a) and (2)(b) of regulation 6, regulation 7 
and item 4 of the table and the definition of “relevant institution” in Schedule 1, must be read with— 

(a) section 22 of the 2000 Act (classes of activity and categories of investment); 

(b) any relevant order under that section; and 

(c) Schedule 2 to that Act(
7
) (regulated activities). 

Definition of “investment” 

3.—(1) In these Regulations “investment” and related expressions have their normal meaning. 

(2) But the following provisions of this regulation specify things which count as investments for 

these Regulations, although they might not otherwise do so, and exclude things which might 

otherwise count.  

(3) A contract entered into in the course of dealing in financial futures or traded options is an 
investment. 

(4) Prior to 1st April 2010, if the administering authority uses fund money for any purpose for 

which it may borrow money, that use is an investment. 

(5) A contract of insurance is an investment if it is a contract of a relevant class, and is entered 

into with a person within paragraph (6) for whom entering into the contract constitutes the carrying 

on of a regulated activity within the meaning of the 2000 Act. 

(6) The persons within this paragraph are— 

(a) a person who has permission under Part 4 of the 2000 Act (permission to carry on 

regulated activities) to effect or carry out contracts of insurance of a relevant class; 

(b) an EEA firm of the kind mentioned in paragraph 5(d) of Schedule 3 to the 2000 

Act(
8
) (EEA passport rights), which has permission under paragraph 15 of that 

Schedule (as a result of qualifying for authorisation under paragraph 12 of that 

Schedule(
9
)) to effect or carry out contracts of insurance of a relevant class; and 

(c) a person who does not fall within sub-paragraph (a) or (b) and who, because that 

person’s head office is in an EEA State within the meaning of the 2000 Act other than 

the United Kingdom, is permitted by the law of that State to effect or carry out 

contracts of insurance of a relevant class. 

(7) A contract of insurance is of a relevant class for the purposes of paragraphs (5) and (6) if it 
is— 

(a) a contract of insurance on human life or a contract to pay an annuity on human life 

where the benefits are wholly or partly to be determined by reference to the value of, 

or the income from, property of any description (whether or not specified in the 

contract) or by reference to fluctuations in, or in an index of, the value of property of 

any description (whether or not so specified); or  

(b) a contract to manage the investments of pension funds, whether or not combined with 

contracts of insurance covering either conservation of capital or payment of a 

minimum interest. 

(8) A stock lending arrangement is an investment if, and only if, in respect of it, the conditions in 

rules 5.4.4R and  5.4.6R, modified as specified in paragraph (9) of this regulation(
10
), in the 

                                                           
(7) Amended by section 1 of the Regulation of Financial Services (Land Transactions) Act 2005 
(c.24),  and paragraph 1 of Schedule 2 to the Dormant Bank and Building Society Accounts Act 2008 
(c.31).  
(8) Amended by S.I. 2004/3379. 
(9) Amended by S.I. 2007/126, S.I. 2007/3253.  
(10) The Department for Communities and Local Government has produced a document setting 
out rules 5.4.4R and 5.4.6R  of the Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook, modified as specified 

Page 55



   

Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook made by the Financial Services Authority(
11
) are 

fulfilled in relation to that arrangement. 

(9) The modifications mentioned in paragraph (8) are that— 

(a) in rules 5.4.4R and 5.4.6R references to the depositary must be read as if they were 

references to the administering authority; 

(b) in paragraph 1 of rule 5.4.4R for the words “An ICVC, or the depositary at the 
request of the ICVC, or the trustee at the request of the manager, may enter into a 

repo contract, or” there shall be substituted the words “The administering authority 

may enter into”;  

(c) in paragraph 1(a) of rule 5.4.4R, the words “for the account of the ICVC or by the 

trustee,” and the words “or to the trustee” shall be omitted;  

(d) sub-paragraphs 1(b) (iii) and 1(b) (iv) of  rule 5.4.4R shall not apply; 

(e) paragraph 1A of rule 5.4.6R shall not apply; 

(f) in paragraph 5 of rule 5.4.6R the words “under COLL 6.3 (Valuation and pricing) or 

this chapter,” shall be omitted, and the reference to the authorised fund must be read 

as if it were a reference to the pension fund; and 

(g) in paragraph 6 of rule 5.4.6R references to scheme property must be read as if they 

were references to fund money, and the words in sub-paragraph (a) “for the purposes 

of COLL 6.3 or this chapter” and in sub-paragraph (b) “of this chapter” shall be 

omitted. 

(10) It is an investment to contribute to a limited partnership in an unquoted securities investment 

partnership. 

(11) A sub-underwriting contract is an investment. 

(12) For the purposes of this regulation— 

“limited partnership ” means a partnership where the partners are not liable for the debts or 

obligations of the partnership beyond the amount which they contributed at the time of 

becoming a partner;  

“traded option” means an option quoted on a recognised stock exchange or on the London 

International Financial Futures Exchange; and 

“unquoted securities investment partnership” means a partnership for investing in securities 

which are normally not quoted on a recognised stock exchange when the partnership buys 

them. 

Management of pension fund 

Management of pension fund 

4.—(1) This regulation is about the sums which an administering authority must pay or credit to 

and may pay from the pension fund which it administers. 

(2) An authority must pay or credit to its pension fund, in addition to any other sum the Benefits 

Regulations, the Transitional Regulations or the Administration Regulations specify must be paid or 

credited to the fund— 

(a) the amounts payable by it or paid to it for the credit of the fund by any other authority 

under regulations 39 to 41 of the Administration Regulations (employers’ 

contributions and payments); 

                                                                                                                                                                      
in regulation 3(9).  A copy of this document may be obtained by contacting the Department’s 
Workforce Pay and Pensions Division (tel. 0303 444 2184 or email 
robert.holloway@communities.gsi.gov.uk).   
(11) The Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook (known as COLL) is made by the Financial 
Services Authority by virtue of Part X and sections 247 and 248 of the 2000 Act and S.I. 2001/1228, 
see http://fsahandbook.info/FSA/html/handbook/COLL. 

Page 56



   

(b) all members’ contributions including those made by virtue of the Transitional 

Regulations, except contributions payable under regulation 25 of the Administration 

Regulations (additional voluntary contributions and shared cost additional voluntary 

contributions); 

(c) all income arising during the year from investment of the fund; 

(d) all capital money deriving from such investment; and  

(e) all additional payments received by the authority under the Benefits Regulations, the 

Transitional Regulations or the Administration  Regulations. 

(3) In the case of an administering authority which maintains more than one pension fund, as 

respects sums which relate to specific members the references in paragraph (2) to an authority’s 

fund are to the fund which is the appropriate fund for the members in question in accordance with 

Schedule 4 to the Administration Regulations (appropriate funds). 

(4) Interest under regulation 44(1) of the Administration Regulations (interest) must be credited 

and paid to the fund to which the overdue payment is due. 

(5)  Any costs, charges and expenses incurred administering a pension fund may be paid from it 

except those costs and charges prescribed by regulations made under section 23 (supply of pension 

information in connection with divorce etc), 24 (charges by pension arrangements in relation to 

earmarking orders) or 41 (charges in respect of pension sharing costs) of the Welfare Reform and 

Pensions Act 1999(
12
) which the administering authority is enabled to recover by or under any such 

regulations. 

(6) In this regulation— 

“member” means any active or deferred member or any pensioner but does not include a 

person who has rights to future benefits under the scheme which are attributable (directly or 

indirectly) to a credit under section 29(1)(b) of the Welfare Reform and Pension Act 1999(
13
) 

or corresponding Northern Ireland legislation;  

“the Benefits Regulations” means the Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, 

Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007(
14
); and  

“the Transitional Regulations” means the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional 

Provisions) Regulations 2008(
15
). 

Power to borrow 

5.—(1) Except as provided in this regulation, an administering authority must not borrow money 

where the borrowing is liable to be repaid out of its pension fund. 

(2) An administering authority may borrow by way of temporary loan or overdraft from a bank or 

otherwise any sums which it may require for the purpose of— 

(a) paying benefits due under the scheme, or  

(b) to meet investment commitments arising from the implementation of a decision by it 

to change the balance between different types of investment. 

(3) An administering authority may only borrow money under paragraph (2) if, at the time of 

borrowing, the authority reasonably believes that the sum borrowed and interest charged in respect 

of such sum can be repaid out of its pension fund within 90 days of the date of the borrowing. 

Separate bank account 

6.—(1) On and after 1st April 2011, an administering authority must hold in a separate account 

kept by it with a deposit-taker in accordance with this regulation— 

                                                           
(12) 1999 c. 30; sections 23 and 24 were amended by the Civil Partnership Act 2004 (c.33), 
Schedule 27, paragraphs 157 and 158 and Schedule 30.  
(13) 1999 c.30. 
(14) S.I. 2007/1166, amended by S.I. 2008/1083, 2008/2425, 2009/1025. 
(15) S.I. 2008/238, amended by S.I. 2008/1083, 2008/2425. 

Page 57



   

(a) all monies held by the authority on that date; and 

(b) all monies received by it on or after that date 

for the purpose of its pension fund.  

(2) “Deposit-taker” for the purposes of paragraph (1) means— 

(a) a person who has permission under Part 4 of the 2000 Act (permission to carry on 

regulated activities) to accept deposits; 

(b) an EEA firm of the kind mentioned in paragraph 5(b) of Schedule 3 to the 2000 Act 

(EEA passport rights) which has permission under paragraph 15 of that Schedule (as 

a result of qualifying for authorisation under paragraph 12 of that Schedule(
16
)) to 

accept deposits; 

(c) the Bank of England or the central bank of an EEA state other than the United 

Kingdom; or 

(d) the National Savings Bank. 

(3) The deposit-taker shall not, in relation to the account referred to in paragraph (1), exercise any 
right of set-off it may have in respect of any other account held by the administering authority or 

any party connected to the administering authority. 

Investment managers 

Definition of “investment manager” 

7. For the purposes of  regulations 8 to 10, an “investment manager” is— 

(a) a person who has permission under Part 4 of the 2000 Act (permission to carry on 

regulated activities) to manage investments and may lawfully manage the assets of 

occupational pension schemes; 

(b) an EEA firm of the kind mentioned in sub-paragraph (a), (b) or (c) of paragraph 5 of 

Schedule 3 to that Act(
17
) (EEA passport rights), which has permission under 

paragraph 15 of that Schedule (as a result of qualifying for authorisation under 

paragraph 12 of that Schedule(
18
)) to manage investments and may lawfully manage 

the assets of occupational pension schemes; or 

(c) a person— 

(i) who does not carry on regulated activities (within the meaning of the 2000 Act) from 

a permanent place of business maintained by that person in the United Kingdom; 

(ii) whose head office is situated in an EEA State (within the meaning of the 2000 Act) 

other than the United Kingdom; 

(iii) who is recognised by the law of that EEA State as a national of that or another EEA 
State; 

(iv) who is authorised under that law to carry on one or more regulated activities (within 

the meaning of the 2000 Act); and 

(v) who is not prevented by that law from managing the assets of occupational pension 

schemes or assets belonging to another person. 

Choice of investment managers 

8.—(1) Instead of managing and investing fund money itself, an administering authority may 

appoint one or more investment managers to manage and invest fund money, or any part of such 

money, on its behalf. 

(2) But the authority may only appoint an investment manager if the authority complies with 

paragraphs (3) to (6). 

                                                           
(16) Amended by S.I. 2007/126, S.I. 2007/3253. 
(17) Amended by S.I. 2003/1473,  S.I. 2007/126, S.I. 2006/3221.  
(18) Amended by S.I. 2007/126, S.I. 2007/3253.  

Page 58



   

(3) The authority must reasonably believe that the investment manager’s ability in and practical 

experience of financial matters makes that investment manager suitably qualified to make 

investment decisions for it. 

(4) The investment manager must not be its employee. 

(5) The authority must be satisfied— 

(a) that the fund, or the relevant part of it, is managed by an adequate number of 

investment managers; and  

(b) that where there is more than one investment manager, the value of fund money to be 

managed by any one of them will not be disproportionate in comparison with the 

value of fund money managed by other investment managers. 

(6) The authority must have taken proper advice in relation to the appointment. 

Terms of appointment of investment managers 

9.—(1) An investment manager must be appointed on the terms set out in paragraphs (2) to (7). 

(2) The administering authority must be able to terminate the appointment by not more than one 

month’s notice. 

(3) The investment manager must report to the administering authority at least once every three 

months on the action the investment manager has taken on behalf of the authority. 

(4) The investment manager must comply with all the administering authority’s instructions. 

(5) In managing the fund the investment manager must take into account— 

(a) that fund money must be invested in a wide variety of investments; 

(b) the suitability for the fund of particular types of investment, or of any particular 

investment; and 

(c) the administering authority’s statement of investment principles.  

(6) But paragraph (5)(a) does not apply where the investment manager only manages part of the 

fund and the terms of the investment manager’s appointment provide that it does not apply. 

(7) The investment manager must not make investments which would contravene the 

administering authority’s statement of investment principles or regulation 14 (restrictions on 

investments). 

(8) In determining the investment manager’s terms of appointment, the administering authority 

must take proper advice. 

Review of investment manager’s performance 

10.—(1) Where an administering authority has appointed an investment manager it must keep the 

investment manager’s performance under review. 

(2) At least once every three months the authority must review the investments the investment 

manager has made for the fund and any other action that has been taken by the manager in relation 

to it. 

(3) Periodically the authority must consider whether or not to retain the investment manager. 

(4) In reviewing an investment manager’s decisions and appointment, the authority must take 

proper advice— 

(a) if regulation 9(5)(a) applies, about the variety of investments the investment manager 

has made; and  

(b) about the suitability of those investments for the fund generally and as investments of 

their type. 

Page 59



   

Investment and use of fund money  

Investment policy and investment of pension fund money 

11.—(1) An administering authority must formulate a policy for the investment of its fund money. 

(2) The authority’s investment policy must be formulated with a view— 

(a) to the advisability of investing fund money in a wide variety of investments; and  

(b) to the suitability of particular investments and types of investments. 

(3) The authority must invest, in accordance with its investment policy, any fund money that is not 

needed immediately to make payments from the fund. 

(4) The authority may vary its investments 

(5) The authority must obtain proper advice at reasonable intervals about its investments. 

(6) The authority must consider such advice in taking any steps in relation to its investments. 

Statement of investment principles 

12.—(1) An administering authority must, after consultation with such persons as it considers 

appropriate, prepare, maintain (in accordance with paragraph (5)) and publish a written statement of 

the principles governing its decisions about the investment of fund money. 

(2) The statement must cover its policy on— 

(a) the types of investment to be held; 

(b) the balance between different types of investments; 

(c) risk, including the ways in which risks are to be measured and managed; 

(d) the expected return on investments; 

(e) the realisation of investments; 

(f) the extent (if at all) to which social, environmental or ethical considerations are taken 

into account in the selection, retention and realisation of investments;   

(g) the exercise of the rights (including voting rights) attaching to investments, if the 

authority has any such policy; and 

(h) stock lending. 

(3) The statement must also state the extent to which the administering authority complies with 

guidance given by the Secretary of State, and, to the extent the authority does not so comply, the 

reasons for not complying. 

(4) The first such statement must be published no later than 1st July 2010. 

(5) The statement must be reviewed, and if necessary, revised, by the administering authority from 

time to time and, in the case of any material change in the authority’s policy on the matters referred 

to in paragraphs (2) and (3), before the end of a period of six months beginning with the date of that 

change. 

(6) A statement revised under paragraph (5) must be published. 

Investments under section 11(1) of the Trustee Investments Act 1961 

13. An administering authority may invest, without any restriction as to quantity, in any 

investment made in accordance with a scheme under section 11(1) of the Trustee Investments Act 

1961(
19
) (which enables the Treasury to approve schemes for local authorities to invest in 

collectively). 

                                                           
(19) 1961 c. 62. 

Page 60



   

Restrictions on investments 

14.—(1) The table in Schedule 1 and the exceptions specified below that table (“the exceptions”) 

shall have effect for the purpose of limiting the making of investments of the types described in the 

table(
20
). 

(2) Subject to paragraph (3), and, where relevant, the exceptions, a percentage listed in Column 1 

of the table in relation to a type of investment so described is the limit on the proportion of fund 

money which may be invested in that type of investment. 

(3) An administering authority may, in accordance with regulation 15, decide to increase the limit 

in relation to a particular type of investment so described, but only where a percentage is shown in 

relation to that type of investment in Column 2 of the table, and may not exceed that percentage. 

(4) The percentages mentioned in paragraphs (2) and (3) are percentages of the total value of all 

existing investments of fund money immediately before the making of the investment concerned. 

(5) Paragraph (2) and, if applicable, paragraph (3) apply only at the time the investment is made. 

(6) The definitions set out below the exceptions shall have effect for interpreting the table. 

Requirements for increased limits 

15.—(1) An administering authority which decides to increase limits under regulation 14(3) must 

comply with the requirements of this regulation. 

(2) The authority must have taken proper advice. 

(3) The authority must take account of the matters set out in regulation 11(2). 

(4) Where there is a decision to use the increased limits under regulation 14(3) in relation to item 

13 of the table in Schedule 1, the additional risks of the increased limit must have been taken into 

account in addition to those matters set out in regulation 11(2).  

(5) The decision must specify— 

(a) the description of investment to which it applies;  

(b) the limit on the amount of the investment; 

(c) the reason for that decision; 

(d) the period for which the decision will apply; 

(e) if the authority intend to review the decision before the end of the period in (d), the 

date when the decision will be reviewed; and 

(f) that the decision complies with these Regulations. 

(6) Where the period for which the decision will apply comes to an end, the limits will be those set 

out in Column 1 of the table unless before the end of that period the administering authority reviews 

the decision in accordance with this regulation. 

(7) A decision following a review to continue to use limits increased under regulation 14(3), 

whether or not the increased limits have been altered, must— 

(a) take account of the matters set out in paragraphs (2)-(4); and 

(b) specify the matters set out in paragraph (5). 

(8) Before a decision under regulation 14(3) or under paragraph (7) of this regulation can take 
effect, the administering authority must revise and publish the written statement of investment 

principles which it is required to maintain under regulation 12 so as to include the matters specified 

in paragraph (5). 

                                                           
(20) The Occupational Pension Schemes (Investment) Regulations 2005 (S.I. 2005/3378, amended 
by S.I. 2007/814 and S.I. 2009/615) which, in particular, prescribe certain investments as employer-
related investments in addition to those specified in section 40(2) of the Pensions Act 1995, set out 
restrictions on employer-related investments and make provision as regards the application of the 
restrictions to schemes in relation to which there is more than one employer, may further restrict or 
limit investment of fund money. 

Page 61



   

Use of fund money by an administering authority 

16.—(1) An administering authority must pay interest on the total from day to day of any fund 

money used under regulation 3(4) and not repaid. 

(2) That interest may not be paid at a rate lower than the lowest rate at which the authority could 

have obtained a commercial loan of that amount at 7 days’ notice (otherwise than by bank 

overdraft). 

Supplementary  

Revocations 

17. The instruments listed in Column (1) of the table in Schedule 2 are revoked to the extent 

stated, in relation to each, in Column (3) of that table. 

 

Signed by authority of the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

 

 Rosie Winterton 

 Minister of State 

24
th
 November 2009 Department for Communities and Local Government 

Page 62



   

 SCHEDULE 1 Regulation 14(1) 

TABLE OF LIMITS ON INVESTMENTS 

 

Investment Column 1 

Limits under regulation 14(2) 

Column 2 

Increased limits under 

regulation 14(3) 

1. Any single sub-underwriting 

contract 

1% 5% 

2. All contributions to any 

single partnership. 

2% 5% 

3. All contributions to 

partnerships. 

5% 15% 

4. The sum of— 

(a) all loans (but see 

paragraph 1 

below); and 

(b) any deposits 

with— 

(i) any local 

authority; or 

(ii) any body with 

power to issue a 

precept or 

requisition to a 

local authority, 

or to the 

expenses of 

which a local 

authority can be 

required to 

contribute, which 

is an exempt 

person (within 

the meaning of 

the 2000 Act) in 

respect of 

accepting 

deposits as a 

result of an order 

made under 

section 38(1) of 

that Act. 

10% — 

5. All investments in unlisted 

securities of companies. 

10% 15% 

6. Any single holding (but see 

paragraphs 2 and 3 below). 

10% — 

7. All deposits with any single 

bank, institution or person 

(other than the National 

Savings Bank). 

10% — 

8. All sub-underwriting 15% — 

Page 63



   

contracts. 

9. All investments in units or 

shares of the investments 

subject to the trusts of unit 

trust scheme managed by any 

one body (but see paragraph 3 

below). 

25% 35% 

10. All investments in open-

ended investment companies 

where the collective 

investment schemes 

constituted by the companies 

are managed by one body. 

25% 35% 

11. All investments in unit or 

other shares of the investments 

subject to the trusts of unit 

trust schemes and all 

investments in open-ended 

investment companies where 

the unit trust schemes and the 

collective investment schemes 

constituted by those 

companies are managed by 

any one body (but see 

paragraph 3 below). 

25% 35% 

12. Any single insurance 

contract. 

25% 35% 

13. All securities transferred 

(or agreed to be transferred) by 

the authority under stock 

lending arrangements. 

25% 35% 

 

EXCEPTIO�S TO LIMITS I� THE TABLE 

1. The restriction in item 4 of the table does not apply to a Government loan. 

2.The restriction in item 6 of the table does not apply if— 

(a) the investment is made by an investment manager appointed under regulation 8; and 

(b) the single holding is in units or other shares of the investments subject to the trusts of 

any one unit trust scheme. 

3. The restrictions in items 6, 9 and 11 do not apply to— 

(a) National Savings Certificates; 

(b) fixed-interest securities issued by Her Majesty’s Government in the United Kingdom, 

the Government of Northern Ireland or the Government of the Isle of Man and 

registered in the United Kingdom or the Isle of Man or Treasury Bills; 

(c) any securities the payment of interest on which is guaranteed by Her Majesty’s 

Government in the United Kingdom or the Government of Northern Ireland; or 

(d) a deposit with a relevant institution. 
 

I�TERPRETATIO� 

“Collective investment scheme” has the meaning given in section 235 of the 2000 Act. 

“Companies” includes companies established under the law of any territory outside the United 

Kingdom. 

Page 64



   

“Government loan” means a loan— 

(a) to Her Majesty’s Government in the United Kingdom; or  

(b) to the Government of the Isle of Man. 

“Listed securities” means securities quoted on a recognised stock exchange. 

“Loan” does not include— 

(a) investing money in registered securities to which section 1 of the Stock Transfer Act 

1963(
21
) applies (transfer by stock transfer forms) or in listed securities; or 

(b) depositing money with a relevant institution, 

and “lent” must be understood in that way. 

“Open-ended investment company” means an open-ended investment company as defined in 

section 236 of the 2000 Act which is an undertaking for collective investment schemes to 

which Council Directive No. 85/611/EEC co-ordinating the laws, regulations and 

administrative provisions relating to undertakings for collective investment in transferable 

securities, as last amended by European Parliament and Council Directive No. 

2001/108/EC(
22
) applies. 

“Relevant institution” means— 

(a) a person who has permission under Part 4 of the 2000 Act (permission to carry on 

regulated activities) to accept deposits; 

(b) an EEA firm of the kind mentioned in paragraph 5(b) of Schedule 3 (EEA passport 

rights) to that Act(
23
) which has permission under paragraph 15(1) of that 

Schedule(
24
) (as a result of qualifying for authorisation under paragraph 12 of that 

Schedule) to accept deposits; or 

(c) a person who is an exempt person in respect of accepting deposits as a result of an 

order made under section 38(1) of that Act (exemption orders); 

“Single holding” means investments— 

(a) in securities of, or in loans to or deposits with, any one body; 

(b) in units or other shares of the investments subject to the trust of any one unit trust 

scheme; or 

(c) in transactions involving any one piece of land or other property. 

“Unlisted securities” means securities which are not quoted on a recognised stock exchange. 

                                                           
(21) 1963 c.18. 
(22) S.I. 2003/2066. 
(23) Amended by S.I. 2003/1473 and S.I. 2006/3221.  
(24) Amended by S.I. 2007/3253. 

Page 65



   

 SCHEDULE 2 Regulation 17 

REVOCATIONS 

 

(1) Regulations revoked (2) References (3) Extent of revocation 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Management and Investment of Funds) 

Regulations 1998 

S.I. 1998/1831 The whole Regulations 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Management and Investment of 

Funds)(Amendment) Regulations 1999 

S.I. 1999/3259 The whole Regulations 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Management and Investment of 

Funds)(Amendment) Regulations 2000 

S.I. 2000/2552 The whole Regulations 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Pension Sharing on Divorce) Regulations 

2000 

S.I. 2000/3025 Regulation 4 

The Financial Services and Markets Act 

2000 (Consequential Amendments and 

Repeals) Order 2001 

S.I. 2001/3649 Regulations 574 to 578 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Management and Investment of 

Funds)(Amendment) Regulations 2002 

S.I. 2002/1852 The whole Regulations 

The Collective Investment Schemes 

(Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 

2003 

S.I. 2003/2066 Regulation 13(3) 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Management and Investment of 

Funds)(Amendment) Regulations 2003 

S.I. 2003/2719 The whole Regulations 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Management and Investment of 

Funds)(Amendment) Regulations 2005 

S.I. 2005/2004 The whole Regulations 

The Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Miscellaneous) Regulations 2008 

S.I. 2008/2425 Regulations 11-14 

 

Page 66



   

EXPLA8ATORY 8OTE 

(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

These Regulations consolidate the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 

Investment of Funds) Regulations 1998 (S.I. 1998/1831) with subsequent amending instruments.  

In addition to minor and drafting amendments, the following changes of substance have been 

made. 

Paragraph (4) of regulation 3 (definition of “investment”) provides that the use of pension fund 

money for any purpose for which the local authority may borrow money shall count as an 

investment for the purposes of these Regulations prior to 1st April 2010 whereupon it will cease to 

count as an investment. 

Regulation 5 (power to borrow) sets out the circumstances in which the administering authority 

may borrow money for the purposes of its pension fund and the rules applying to the repayment of 

any such borrowing.   

Regulation 6 (separate bank account) provides that pension fund money must be kept in a 

separate bank account held by the administering authority for that purpose by 1st April 2011. 

Other provisions provide for: general definitions (regulation 2), what counts as an investment 

(regulation 3), the sums which an administering authority must pay to and may pay from its 

pension fund (regulation 4), the power to appoint an investment manager including the terms of 

such appointment and the requirement to keep the performance of any such manager under review 

(regulations 7-10), general provisions concerning investments (regulation 11) including the 

requirement to prepare and maintain an investment policy (regulation 12), the limits which apply 

to certain types of investments and the requirements which apply if such limits are to be increased 

(regulations 14 and 15) and the requirement to pay interest on fund money used by the 

administering authority (regulation 16).  Regulation 17 and Schedule 2 revoke the instruments and 

provisions which these Regulations replace. 

An impact assessment has not been produced for this instrument as it has no impact on the costs 

of businesses, charities or voluntary bodies and it does not have a significant financial impact on 

any public bodies. 
 

 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Local Government Pension Scheme: 
Investment in Partnerships 

Consultation

November 2012 
Department for Communities and Local Government 

Page 69



© Crown copyright, 2012 

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown. 

You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under the 
terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, visit www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-
government-licence/ or write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 
4DU, or email: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.

This document/publication is also available on our website at www.communities.gov.uk

If you have any enquiries regarding this document/publication, email contactus@communities.gov.uk or 
write to us at: 

Department for Communities and Local Government 
Eland House 
Bressenden Place 
London  
SW1E 5DU 
Telephone: 030 3444 0000  

November 2012 

ISBN: 978-1-4098-3691-9

Page 70



The consultation process and how to 
respond

Scope of the consultation 

Topic of this 
consultation:

Local Government Pension Scheme - Investment in Partnerships 

Scope of this 
consultation:

This consultation seeks views on whether any amendment is 
necessary to remove specific barriers preventing Scheme funds 
from being invested in infrastructure investment vehicles designed 
to control risk exposure and provide both future income stream to 
funds and necessary capital input into projects intended to stimulate 
growth.

Geographical
scope:

England and Wales. 

Impact
Assessment:

Not required as no impact on business or individuals 

Basic information 

To: This consultation is aimed principally at local government. 

Body 
responsible for 
the
consultation:

The Department for Communities and Local Government is 
responsible leading on the policy and the consultation exercise. 

Duration: 6 weeks, with a further consultation period if it is then necessary to 
introduce amending statutory provisions 

Enquiries and 
how to respond 

For enquiries and to respond to this consultation. Please e-mail 

sandra.layne@communities.gsi.gov.uk

When responding, please ensure you have the words “Investment in 
Partnerships” in the email subject line. 

Alternatively you can write to: 
Local Government Pension Scheme - Investments 
Department of Communities and Local Government 
5/F6 Eland House 
Bressenden Place 
London SW1E 5DU 

For more information, please see www.communities.gov.uk

3Page 71



Compliance with 
the Code of 
Practice on 
Consultation:

This consultation complies with the Code and it will be for 6 weeks. 
We are seeking views from the following parties with an interest in 
the Local Government Pension Scheme: 

The Welsh Assembly 

The Chief Executives of: 
 County Councils (England) 
 District Councils (England) 
 Metropolitan Borough Councils (England) 
 Unitary Councils (England) 
 County and County Borough Councils in Wales 
 London Borough Councils 
 South Yorkshire Pension Authority 
 Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 
 Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  
 Bradford Metropolitan City Council 
 South Tyneside Metropolitan Borough Council 
 Wolverhampton Metropolitan Borough Council  
 London Pension Fund Authority 
 Environment Agency 

Town Clerk, City of London Corporation
Clerk, South Yorkshire PTA 
Clerk, West Midlands PTA 
Fire and Rescue Authorities in England and Wales  
Police Authorities in England and Wales 
National Probation Service for England and Wales 
Local Government Association (LGA) 
Employers' Organisation  
LGPC

ALACE
PPMA
SOLACE         
CIPFA  
ALAMA        

Association of Colleges      

Association of Consulting Actuaries 
Association of District Treasurers 
Society of County Treasurers      
Society of Welsh Treasurers      
Society of Metropolitan Treasurers    
Society of London Treasurers 
Association of Educational Psychologists

NAPF
NALC

4Page 72



Society of Local Council Clerks 

Trades Union Congress    
GMB
UCATT 
UNISON    
Unite

NAEIAC
NAPO    

MOCOP Members   
Equal Opportunities Commission 

Background

Getting to this 
stage:

Subsequent to the publication of the Government’s Blueprint for 
Technology and the signing of a memorandum of understanding 
between pension industry representatives and the Government on 
examining ways pension funds could invest in infrastructure 
projects, concern has been expressed that extant provisions of the 
LGPS (Investment and Management of Funds) Regulations 2009 
may be placing an unintended bar on authorities seeking to invest in 
this particular area. 

Previous
engagement:

See above

How to respond 

1. Responses to this consultation must be received by 18 December 2012.

2. You can respond by email to sandra.layne@communities.gsi.gov.uk or 
write to: 

Local Government Pension Scheme - Investments 
Department of Communities and Local Government 
5/G6 Eland House 
Bressenden Place 
London SW1E 5DU 

3. When responding, please state whether you are responding as an 
individual or representing the views of an organisation. If responding on behalf 
of an organisation, please give a summary of the people and organisations it 
represents and, where relevant, who else you have consulted in reaching your 
conclusions. 

5Page 73



Additional copies 

4. This consultation paper is available on the Department for Communities 
and Local Government website at www.communities.gov.uk

Confidentiality and data protection 

6. Information provided in response to this consultation, including personal 
information, may be published or disclosed in accordance with the access to 
information regimes (these are primarily the Freedom of Information Act 2000, 
the Data Protection Act 1998 and the Environmental Information Regulations 
2004).

7. If you want the information that you provide to be treated as confidential, 
please be aware that, under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, there is a 
statutory code of practice with which public authorities must comply and which 
deals, amongst other things, with obligations of confidence. In view of this it 
would be helpful if you could explain to us why you regard the information you 
have provided as confidential. If we receive a request for disclosure of the 
information we will take full account of your explanation, but we cannot give 
an assurance that confidentiality can be maintained in all circumstances. An 
automatic confidentiality disclaimer generated by your IT system will not, in 
itself, be regarded as binding on the department. 

8. DCLG will process your personal data in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act 1998 and in the majority of circumstances this will mean that 
your personal data will not be disclosed to third parties. Individual responses 
will not be acknowledged unless specifically requested. 

Help with queries 

10. Questions about the policy issues raised in the document can be sent to 
the address given at paragraph 2 above. 

11. A copy of the consultation criteria from the Code of Practice on 
Consultation is at www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/resource-library/consultation-
principles-guidance. Are you satisfied that this consultation has followed these 
criteria? If not or you have any other observations about how we can improve 
the process please email: consultationcoordinator@communities.gsi.gov.uk

or write to: 

DCLG Consultation Co-ordinator,
Zone 8/J6,
Eland House,
Bressenden Place 
London SW1E 5DU 

6Page 74



Contents

The consultation process and how to respond 3

Chapter 1 - Introduction 8

Chapter 2 - Setting the context 9

Chapter 3 - Proposals for consultation 12

7Page 75



Chapter 1 - Introduction 

1.1 The primary responsibilities of local authority pension funds are to 
deliver the returns needed to pay Scheme members the pensions they 
have worked hard to earn, and to protect local taxpayers and 
employers from high pension costs. The Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 
(the Investment Regulations) are designed to enable local fund 
managers to pursue effective investment strategies that meet these 
goals. By requiring that funds and risks are spread across a number of 
different types of investment, and setting limits on the proportion of 
funds that can be invested in each type of investment, the Investment 
Regulations help to minimise risk and protect the interest of taxpayers. 

1.2 Within this framework, it is important that local fund managers have 
appropriate levels of flexibility to maximise their investment 
opportunities. In this context, concerns have been expressed that local 
authority pension funds have not been in a position to diversify their 
investments into vehicles established to take advantage of potential 
returns from investment in infrastructure. It has been suggested that 
this is as a result of certain investment category limits within the 
Investment Regulations, particularly where investments which use 
Limited Liability Partnerships have to be considered under the overall 
restriction applying to partnerships. This consultation, therefore, seeks 
views on whether there is merit in amending the Investment 
Regulations to provide further flexibility in the area relating to 
partnerships.

1.3 The consultation will close on 18 December 2012 and details of how to 
respond are set out at the beginning of the document. Importantly, this 
consultation should not be seen as an endorsement by Government of 
any particular investment vehicle. Those decisions remain properly as 
ones for individual local pension authorities, in the light of their own 
analysis. Rather, this consultation is seeking to identify and remove 
any unnecessary barriers to investments which can form an integral 
part of a local investment portfolio and can also assist in stimulating 
growth.

8Page 76



Chapter 2 - Setting the context 

Framework for local investment decisions 

2.1 Local pension authorities must ensure that their funds will provide a 
consistent and known income stream over the long term. This will help 
minimise the impact of managing pension costs, stabilise the level of 
employer contribution rates and limit local taxpayers’ exposure over the 
medium to long term. In developing their investment strategies, local 
fund managers must operate within the framework set by the 
Investment Regulations. These require funds to be invested across a 
spread of different types of investment to minimise risk, and limit the 
proportion of funds that can be invested in each type of investment. A 
copy of the Investment Regulations can be found at: 
www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2009/3093/contents/made . 

2.2 All local authority pension funds are required to have in place a 
Statement of Investment Principles which will describe the Fund’s 
investment objectives, the types of investments held and the Fund’s 
attitude to risk. Any local investment decision must comply with the 
Fund’s Statement of Investment Principles, must be supported by a 
clear business case and must have been made in the light of 
appropriate and proper advice. Final investment decisions rest, in the 
main with locally elected councillor members of investment 
committees, although such committees may include other co-opted 
representative, and the committee will have given due regard to the 
available professional advice and the appropriate use of public funds.

Investing in infrastructure 

2.3 In November 2010, the Government published its Blueprint for 
Technology 1 which set out the Government’s aim to make the UK the 
most attractive place in the world to start and invest in innovative 
technology companies. The blueprint highlighted the role that pension 
funds, both in the private and public sector, can play in filling gaps in 
the provision of growth finance and equity funding for small 
businesses. Whilst recognising that decisions whether or not to invest 
in any particular product or sector will remain entirely a matter for 
individual pension funds, the blueprint encouraged local authorities to 
consider doing more to match the investment strategies of local 
authority pension funds with the needs of UK start-ups.

2.4 In November 2011, HM Treasury, the National Association of Pension 
Funds and the Pension Protection Fund signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding2. All parties agreed that there is the potential for mutual 

1
www.bis.gov.uk/assets/biscore/innovation/docs/b/10-1234-blueprint-for-technology.pdf 

2
www.hm-treasury.gov.uk/d/foi_memorandum_of_understanding.pdf

9Page 77



benefit for the Government and pension funds to facilitate investment in 
infrastructure. The parties agreed to work together to help establish the 
arrangements necessary for efficient and appropriate investment in UK 
infrastructure assets. This work has included the development of the 
Pension Investment Platform, which will seek to raise funds from both 
public and private sector pension schemes.

2.5 More recently, in July 2012, Professor John Kay published his 
independent review of UK Equity Markets and Long Term Decision 
Making3. The review posed several challenges to the relationship 
between pension funds and markets. Overall, the report recommends 
that there should be a shift in the culture of the stock market, with the 
intention of promoting more long term decision making both with a view 
to improving cash flow returns for pension funds and to provide a 
source of long term capital investment in businesses to enable them to 
grow.

The case for change 

2.6 Within this context of debate about the role of pension schemes within 
infrastructure investment, some - including the National Association of 
Pension Funds - have expressed concern that local authority pension 
funds have not been in a position to diversify their investments into 
vehicles established to take advantage of potential returns from 
investment in infrastructure. In particular, it has been suggested that 
difficulty is caused by the 15% limit set by the Investment Regulations 
on investment in partnerships. 

2.7 Commentators argue that, in common with other types of investment 
with a similar degree of risk, infrastructure investment vehicles are 
usually organised as limited partnerships. This means that any 
investment in vehicles such as the Pension Investment Platform (see 
paragraph 2.4) must be taken together with existing investments in 
other limited partnerships, including limited partnerships and the use of 
private equity via a partnership, in considering whether a fund’s 
investment strategy fits within the permitted limits. It has been 
suggested that, in view of this, the current 15% limit is too low and 
would put some local authority pension funds at risk of exceeding this 
limit, and so unable to pursue infrastructure opportunities. It has been 
argued that this, in effect, limits diversification by constraining access 
to an asset class that may be well suited to a local authority pension 
fund’s long term needs.

3
www.bis.gov.uk/assets/biscore/business-law/docs/k/12-917-kay-review-of-equity-markets-

final-report

10Page 78



2.8 In September 2012, the Smith Institute published a report on local 
authority pension funds and investing for growth4, which arrived at 
similar conclusions. Among its proposals it recommended that 
Government should consider reviewing and exploring potential 
changes to the restrictions on investments as currently set out in the 
Investment Regulations. In particular questions were posed in relation 
to limits for investment in limited liability partnerships which fall under 
the general definition of partnerships. 

4
www.smith-institute.org.uk/file/local%20authority%20pension%20funds%20-

%20investing%20for%20growth.pdf

11Page 79



Chapter 3 - Proposals for consultation

3.1 As indicated, by virtue of this consultation, Government is not 
endorsing any particular type of investment or investment vehicle. 
Those decisions remain properly as ones for individual local pension 
authorities, in the light of their own analysis, with final decisions resting 
with locally elected councillors. Similarly, the Government is not 
proposing to fundamentally change the framework for investment 
provided by the Investment Regulations. Those regulations provide 
necessary and effective protections for local council tax payers, the 
principle of which must remain.

3.2 However, in light of the context described in the previous chapter, this 
consultation seeks views on whether action is necessary to amend 
those regulations to remove any unnecessary barriers to investments 
in infrastructure. If action is considered necessary, the Government 
would welcome views on what steps it should take. 

3.3 The Government considers that there are two clear options for change: 

A) Increase the limit on investments in partnerships from 15% of a 
local authority pension fund to 30%.  

Such an increase could facilitate investment in infrastructure 
investment vehicles along side other existing arrangements organised 
as limited partnerships. However, there would be no direction for funds 
to spread investment in limited liability partnerships between different 
classes of investment. For example, a fund could use this higher limit 
to increase the proportion of funds that could be invested in other 
investment opportunities such as private equities. In addition, any 
increase to the proportion of funds invested in partnerships must be 
considered within the increased risk potentially involved in such 
vehicles.

B) Create a new investment class for investment in infrastructure 
(including via limited liability partnerships), with an appropriate 
investment limit of 15% of an overall fund.  

Again, this approach would need to be considered in the context of 
increases in risk associated with investment in limited liability 
partnerships. However, it may help to protect against concentration of 
investment in a particular type of investment. In considering this option, 
respondents are asked in particular to offer views on how this might 
best be defined in regulation.

12Page 80



3.4 In the light of the options set out above, the Government would 
welcome views on the following questions: 

Q1. How best could the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 be 
amended to enable local authority pension funds to invest more easily 
in infrastructure vehicles? 

Q2. What would be the most appropriate limit on investments in 
partnerships contained within the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009? 

Q3. Should a new investment class for investment in infrastructure 
(including via partnerships or limited liability partnerships) be created 
and be inserted into the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009? If so, 
what would be an appropriate limit for such a class? How might this 
be best defined in regulation?5

Q4. Are there other ways, not specifically raised in this consultation 
document, that the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management 
and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 could be amended to 
increase flexibility for local authority pension funds to invest in 
infrastructure projects?

Q5. Are there ways in which the Regulations could be amended to 
facilitate investment in infrastructure specifically in the United 
Kingdom, where local funds believe that appropriate rates of return 
can be achieved? 

5
 By way of illustration consultees may wish to look at s.2(3) of the Housing and Regeneration 

Act 2008 

13Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Pension Fund Committee 

4 December 2012 
 

Short Term Investments for the period 
ended 30 September 2012  
 

 

 
 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. To provide the Committee with information on the performance of the Pension 

Fund’s short term investments for the 6 month period ended 30 September 
2012.  

 
Short Term Investments 
 
2. Durham County Council (DCC) invests the short term cash balances on behalf 

of the Pension Fund; this is done in line with DCC’s Treasury Management 
Policy and Annual Investment Strategy.  This investment strategy sets out the 
maximum amounts and time limits in respect of deposits which can be placed 
with each financial institution.  
 

3. The Pension Fund’s surplus cash holding as at 30 September 2012 was 
£14.024m which was held in the institutions listed in the table below alongside 
their credit rating at 30 September 2012. 
 

Financial Institution Rating 
Amount 
Invested 

     £m 

Bank Deposit Accounts    

  The Co-operative Bank  BBB+ 0.963 

  Natwest Bank A 3.415 
     

Fixed Term Deposits    

  Barclays A 1.452 

  Royal Bank of Scotland A 1.707 

  Bank of Scotland A 5.121 

  Nationwide Building Society A+ 1.281 
   

National Savings & Investments N/A 0.085 
        

Total     14.024 
        

Agenda Item 10

Page 83



 
4. The following table provides information on the interest earned during the 6 

month period, the average daily investment balance and the average return 
earned in comparison to the average bank base rate: 
 

 

 Total 

Interest Earned £85,551 

Average Return Earned 0.895% 

Average Bank of England base rate 0.500% 

Average Daily Balance of Investments £19.125m 

 
 

 
Recommendation 
 
5. Members are asked to note the position at 30 September 2012 regarding the 

Pension Fund’s short term investments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact:  Hilary Appleton  Tel: 03000 266239  

 
 

Page 84



Page 1 of 2 

 
Agenda Item No.  

 
 

Pension Fund Committee 
 

4 December 2012 
 

Annual Governance Report for the year 
ended 31 March 2012 
 

 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1 To inform Members of the completion of the audit of the Pension Fund 

Accounts and to present the Annual Governance Report for the financial 
year ended 31 March 2012. 

 
Background 
 
2 A report to the Pension Fund Committee on 4 September 2012 included 

the Pension Fund Statement of Accounts and the Interim Governance 
Report for the Pension Fund.  At that time, the Accounts were subject to 
audit by our external Auditor, the Audit Commission. 
 

3 The Statement of Accounts has now been approved by the Audit 
Committee and the External Auditor has expressed his opinion on the 
County Council and Pension Fund Accounts.  
 

4 The Annual Report and Accounts of the Pension Fund, which contains the 
audited Statement of Accounts, was circulated to Members and was 
presented to the Annual Meeting of the Pension Fund on 1November 2012 
and is available on the County Council’s website.. 
 

Annual Governance Report 
 
5 The Annual Governance Report has now been completed and is attached 

at Appendix 2 for Members’ information. 
 

6 Appendix 1b to the Annual Governance Report gives the Auditor’s 
unqualified opinion on the Pension Fund’s Financial Statements and the 
Annual Report: 

 “In my opinion the pension fund’s financial statements:  
 

• give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension 
fund during the year ended 31 March 2012 and the amount and 
disposition of the fund’s assets and liabilities as at 31 March 
2012; and  
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 85



• have been prepared properly in accordance with the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom 2011/12.  

 
 Opinion on other matters  

In my opinion, the information given in the annual report for the financial 
year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the 
financial statements.” 

 
7 Appendix 2 to the Annual Governance Report details the uncorrected 

errors.  These errors found in the accounts have not been corrected due to 
uncertainty over the amount of the amendment to be made and the error 
does not materially affect the financial statements.   
 

8 Appendix 3 to the Annual Governance Report details the changes made to 
the Accounts as a result of the audit of the accounts.  
 

9 It is pleasing to note that the Auditor in his Audit Letter to the County 
Council also stated that: 
 
 “  the quality of the Pension Fund financial statements also improved this 
year with fewer errors identified than in previous years.” 
 

 
Summary 
 
10 Members are asked to note the contents of this report. 
 
 

Contact: Hilary Appleton     Tel: 03000 266239 

 

Page 86



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 

re
p

o
rt

D
u

rh
a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

A
u

d
it

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Page 87



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

 C
o

n
te

n
ts

K
e

y
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.3

B
e

fo
re

 I
 g

iv
e

 m
y
 o

p
in

io
n

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
4

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

5

F
e

e
s

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
1

0

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

a
 –

 D
ra

ft
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

a
u

d
it

o
r’

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
1

1

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

b
 –

 D
ra

ft
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

a
u

d
it

o
r’

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
1

6

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 –
 U

n
c

o
rr

e
c

te
d

 e
rr

o
rs

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
1

8

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

 –
 C

o
rr

e
c

te
d

 e
rr

o
rs

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

2
0

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

 –
 D

ra
ft

 l
e

tt
e

r 
o

f 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

.2
2

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

 –
 G

lo
s

s
a

ry
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.2
6

     

Page 88



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
3

 K
e

y
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
s
 t

h
e
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 f

ro
m

 m
y
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti

a
ll
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
.

A
s
 a

t 
1

8
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r,
 m

y
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 n

o
w

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 c
o

m
p

le
te

. 
S

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n

 o
f 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 m

y
 f

in
a

l 

re
v
ie

w
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 i
s
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

I 
p

la
n

 t
o

 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 

th
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

I 
a

ls
o

 p
la

n
 t

o
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

. 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
a

 c
o

n
ta

in
s
 a

 c
o

p
y
 o

f 
m

y
 d

ra
ft

 a
u

d
it
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 A
p

p
e

n
d
ix

 1
b

 c
o

n
ta

in
s
 a

 c
o

p
y
 o

f 
m

y
 d

ra
ft

 a
u

d
it
 

re
p

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
. 

T
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
u

d
it
 b

y
 t

h
e

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

 a
n

d
 w

e
re

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

T
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n
d

’s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

rr
o

rs
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
. 

N
o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 e
rr

o
rs

 h
a

d
 a

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
im

p
a

c
t 
to

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 

o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

, 
a

n
d

 m
o

s
t 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 e

rr
o

rs
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

 £
1

3
 m

ill
io

n
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
e

rr
o

r 
in

 t
h

e
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 
d

e
ri

v
a

ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
d

 n
o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
. 

I 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

e
rr

o
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 I
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
a

s
k
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 t
o

 a
m

e
n

d
, 

d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

 u
n

c
e

rt
a

in
ti
e

s
. 

I 
a

ls
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
 e

rr
o

rs
 a

n
d

 n
o
n

 t
ri

v
ia

l 
e

rr
o

rs
, 

a
ll 

o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 h

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 a
m

e
n

d
, 

O
v
e

ra
ll 

I 
h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 

th
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

’s
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

. 
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 o
th

e
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

I 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
 t

o
 y

o
u

r 
a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
. 

 

Page 89



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
4

 B
e

fo
re

 I
 g

iv
e

 m
y

 o
p

in
io

n
 

M
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 o

n
ly

 m
a
tt

e
rs

 o
f 

g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

th
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

e
 t

o
 m

y
 a

tt
e
n

ti
o

n
 i
n

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
. 
I 
h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
ll
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

m
ig

h
t 

b
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 

to
 y

o
u

. 

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 

I 
c
a

n
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

I 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 B

o
a

rd
's

 e
th

ic
a

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

a
u

d
it
o

rs
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

S
 1

 (
re

v
is

e
d

) 
- 

In
te

g
ri
ty

, 
O

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
n

d
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

c
e

. 

I 
a

m
 n

o
t 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
n

y
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 t
h

a
t 

m
a

y
 a

ff
e

c
t 

th
e

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
, 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 t
e

a
m

 o
r 

m
e

, 
th

a
t 

I 
a

m
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
y
 a

u
d

it
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

th
ic

a
l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 t

o
 r

e
p
o

rt
 t

o
 y

o
u

. 
 

 I 
a

s
k

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 t
o

: 

!
 

ta
k
e

 n
o

te
 o

f 
th

e
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 (
A

p
p

e
n

d
ic

e
s
 2

 a
n
d

 3
);

 a
n

d
 

!
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

tt
e

r 
o

f 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

),
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 b

e
fo

re
 I

 i
s
s
u

e
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

. 

Page 90



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
5

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
T

h
e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
’s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 a

n
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
m

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 f
o

r 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 t

o
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
fo

r 
it

s
 s

te
w

a
rd

s
h

ip
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c
 f

u
n

d
s
. 
A

s
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e
 f

in
a
l 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 
It

 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
th

a
t 

y
o

u
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

m
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 b

e
fo

re
 y

o
u

 a
d

o
p

t 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

S
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 c

le
a

ra
n

c
e

 o
f 

a
 s

m
a

ll 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g

 m
a

tt
e

rs
, 

I 
p

la
n

 t
o

 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
 u

n
q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

M
y
 o

p
in

io
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 

F
u

n
d

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

. 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ic

e
s
 1

a
 a

n
d

 1
b

 c
o

n
ta

in
 c

o
p

ie
s
 o

f 
m

y
 d

ra
ft

 a
u

d
it
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
. 

M
y
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
. 
I 

e
x
p

e
c
t 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

ll 
m

y
 w

o
rk

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 m

y
 f

in
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
, 

b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

o
n

 2
7

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

. 
I 

w
ill

 u
p

d
a

te
 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
y
 o

ra
l 
re

p
o

rt
. 

U
n

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 e

rr
o

rs
 

I 
h

a
v
e

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 t

h
e

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

u
n

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 e

rr
o

rs
 a

n
d

 u
n

c
e

rt
a

in
ti
e
s
 a

t 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
. 

A
ll 

o
f 

th
e

s
e

 i
te

m
s
 a

re
 u

n
c
e

rt
a

in
ti
e
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 e
rr

o
rs

 a
n

d
 a

s
 

s
u

c
h

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 f

o
r.

  

C
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 e

rr
o

rs
 

M
y
 w

o
rk

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

rr
o

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
u
d

it
. 

N
o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

. 
A

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 o
f 

th
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

t 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 3
. 

I 
a

ls
o

 a
g

re
e

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 n
a

rr
a

ti
v
e

. 
T

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

: 

!
 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 o
f 

d
e

ri
v
a

ti
v
e

 a
s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s
 b

y
 a

n
 e

q
u

a
l 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
£

1
3

.7
8

4
 m

ill
io

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 N

e
t 

A
s
s
e

ts
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 n

o
te

s
. 

!
 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 A

q
u

ila
 F

u
n

d
 f

o
r 

a
n

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

£
1

2
3

.2
6

3
 m

ill
io

n
 i
n

 N
o

te
 1

3
. 

T
h

is
 w

a
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

s
 a

 q
u

o
te

d
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
b

u
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

s
 u

n
q

u
o

te
d

. 

Page 91



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
6

 !
 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

P
IV

 v
e

h
ic

le
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e

s
 o

f 
£

1
7

.8
 m

ill
io

n
 a

s
 o

v
e

rs
e

a
s
 e

q
u

it
y
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

s
 i
n

 N
o

te
 1

3
. 

!
 

 M
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

IV
 v

e
h

ic
le

 s
a
le

s
 o

f 
£

2
7

.1
 m

ill
io

n
 a

s
 o

v
e

rs
e

a
s
 e

q
u

it
y
 s

a
le

s
 i
n

 N
o

te
 1

3
. 

!
 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
‘o

th
e

r 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
a

s
s
e

ts
’ 
o

f 
£

2
9

.1
7
6

 m
ill

io
n

 t
o

 l
o

a
n

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
e

iv
a

b
le

s
 i
n
s
te

a
d

 o
f 

fa
ir

 v
a

lu
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
ro

fi
t 

a
n

d
 l
o

s
s
 i
n

 N
o

te
 

1
4

. 

!
 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
lia

b
ili

ti
e

s
 o

f 
£

1
6

.5
5

2
 m

ill
io

n
 t

o
 l
o

a
n

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
a

b
le

s
 i
n

s
te

a
d
 o

f 
fa

ir
 v

a
lu

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

ro
fi
t 

a
n

d
 l
o

s
s
 i
n

 N
o

te
 1

4
. 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ri
s

k
s

 a
n

d
 m

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 

M
y
 a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

, 
d

a
te

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

2
, 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 

th
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
ri

s
k
 t

h
a

t 
I 

e
x
p
e

c
te

d
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
y
 a

u
d

it
. 

T
h

is
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
 

o
f 

u
n

q
u

o
te

d
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 i
n

 A
lli

a
n

c
e
 B

e
rn

s
te

in
. 

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

h
a

s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 y
e

a
r’

s
 a

u
d

it
, 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 e

x
p

lic
it
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
ir

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 ‘
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
b

ia
s
’ 
c
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

T
a

b
le

 1
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
s
 m

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 t
w

o
 

a
re

a
s
. 

T
a

b
le

 1
: 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ri
s

k
s

 a
n

d
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

R
is

k
 

F
in

d
in

g

V
a

lu
e

 o
f 

U
n

q
u

o
te

d
 I

n
v

e
s

tm
e

n
ts

 

T
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
u

n
q

u
o

te
d

 i
n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 A
lli

a
n

c
e
 

B
e

rn
s
te

in
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
n

c
o

rr
e

c
t.

 T
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
u

n
q

u
o

te
d

 f
u

n
d

s
 

in
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

h
e

 v
a

lu
e

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 F
u

n
d

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
a

s
 i
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
. 

L
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r,

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 d

id
 n

o
t 

g
e

t 
a

n
y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h
e

 

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 a

p
p

lie
d

 b
y
 A

lli
a

n
c
e

 B
e

rn
s
te

in
. 

 

 I 
w

o
rk

e
d

 w
it
h

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 v
e

ri
fy

 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 F
u

n
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
o

f 
u

n
q

u
o

te
d

 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 b

e
fo

re
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 f

o
r 

a
u

d
it
. 

M
y
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u
e

s
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

B
ia

s
 

In
 a

n
y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
, 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

m
a

y
 b

e
 i
n

 a
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 

o
v
e

rr
id

e
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 i
t 

h
a
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

. 
T

h
is

 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

im
p

ly
 t

h
a

t 
I 

s
u
s
p

e
c
t 

a
c
tu

a
l 
o

r 
in

te
n

d
e

d
 

m
a

n
ip

u
la

ti
o

n
 b

u
t 

th
a

t 
I 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 w

it
h

 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
c
e

p
ti
c
is

m
. 

 I 
e

v
a

lu
a

te
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o
n

tr
o

ls
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 

m
a

n
ip

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 t

o
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 m
y
s
e

lf
 t

h
a

t,
 t

a
k
in

g
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 

m
a

te
ri

a
lit

y
, 

n
o

 m
a

n
ip

u
la

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 o

c
c
u

rr
e

d
. 

In
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r,

 I
 t

e
s
te

d
: 

!
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t 
jo

u
rn

a
ls

; 
 

!
 

re
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
; 

a
n

d
 

!
 

th
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a
b

le
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
e
s
ti
m

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s
. 

M
y
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 r
e

fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 

Page 92



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
7

 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

R
is

k
 

F
in

d
in

g

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
ra

ft
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

O
th

e
r 

ri
s

k
s

 a
n

d
 m

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 

M
y
 a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

, 
d

a
te

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

2
, 

a
ls

o
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

a
 s

m
a

ll 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

th
e

r 
ri

s
k
s
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 y
e

a
r’

s
 a

u
d

it
. 
T

a
b

le
 2

 d
e

s
c
ri

b
e

s
 

m
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

a
s
. 

T
a

b
le

 2
: 

O
th

e
r 

ri
s

k
s

 a
n

d
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 

 

O
th

e
r 

R
is

k
 

F
in

d
in

g

C
o

m
p

le
te

n
e

s
s

 o
f 

R
e

la
te

d
 P

a
rt

y
 T

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

D
is

c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 
re

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

y
 t

ra
n

s
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

in
c
o

m
p

le
te

. 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 i
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
 

in
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 d
e

c
la

ra
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

fr
o

m
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

h
o

 a
re

 

n
o

t 
D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

. 

 I 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o
r 

th
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 

re
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
y
 t

ra
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rt
o

o
k
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 t
o

 s
a

ti
s
fy

 m
y
s
e

lf
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 

re
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
y
 t

ra
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r.
  

A
ll 

w
ri

tt
e
n

 d
e

c
la

ra
ti
o
n

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
. 

M
y
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u
e

s
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
. 

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti

c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 (

th
e

 C
o

d
e

) 

T
h

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 

fu
lly

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

, 
o

r 

in
c
lu

d
e

 a
ll 

o
f 
th

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
y
, 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

 

  I 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

re
 

C
o

d
e

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rt
o

o
k
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 t
e

s
ti
n
g

 o
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 w

e
re

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
. 

 

M
y
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 r
e

fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
ra

ft
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
.  

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

w
e

a
k

n
e

s
s

e
s

 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

It
 i
s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a

n
d

 t
o

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
ir

 a
d

e
q

u
a

c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 
M

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 a
s
 y

o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
o

r 
is

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 h

a
s
 p

u
t 

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 s
a

ti
s
fy

 i
ts

e
lf
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a

re
 b

o
th

 a
d

e
q
u

a
te

 a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 

Page 93



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
8

 I 
h

a
v
e

 t
e

s
te

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
f 

th
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 o

n
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

x
te

n
t 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f

o
r 

m
e

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
. 

I 
a

m
 n

o
t 

e
x
p

re
s
s
in

g
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l.
  

In
 m

y
 i
n

te
ri

m
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
 I

 d
id

 n
o

t 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 c
o
n

tr
o

ls
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

u
ld

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

I 
d

id
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

a
t 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
a
b

le
 f

ro
m

 s
m

a
lle

r 
b

o
d

ie
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

s
e

p
e
ra

te
ly

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
o

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

in
c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 p

o
s
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 l
e

d
g

e
r.

 I
 d

o
 n

o
t 

in
te

n
d

 t
o
 r

e
p

e
a

t 
th

o
s
e

 w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t.

  

O
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 

I 
a

m
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 t

o
 y

o
u

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
fi
n

d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

to
 y

o
u

r 
o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
’s

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
: 

!
 

Q
u

a
lit

a
ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

y
o
u

r 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
.  

!
 

M
a

tt
e

rs
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 o

th
e

r 
a

u
d

it
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
o

s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

is
s
u
e

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

fr
a

u
d

, 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 l
a
w

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
, 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

y
 t

ra
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

!
 

O
th

e
r 

a
u

d
it
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 o
f 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 i
n

te
re

s
t.

  
 T

a
b

le
 3

: 
O

th
e

r 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 
 

Is
s

u
e

F
in

d
in

g

 

P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 -

  
D

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

I 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 n

o
te

s
. 

I 
h

a
v
e

 c
h

e
c
k
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

, 
w

h
e

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
s
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 (
S

O
R

P
).

 I
 h

a
v
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

s
e

v
e

ra
l 
o

m
is

s
io

n
s
, 
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 e
rr

o
rs

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

.
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
: 

!
 

T
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 
p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
e

a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

o
lic

y
 s

ta
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

re
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 P
F

 S
O

R
P

, 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 n

o
t.

; 

!
 

P
a

g
e

 1
2

5
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

n
o

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 a

re
 i
m

p
a

ir
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 

ju
d

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 b
u

t 
a

n
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
. 

!
 

C
e

rt
a

in
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 n

o
te

s
 w

e
re

 o
m

it
te

d
: 

 

!
 

C
a

s
h

 a
n

d
 c

a
s
h

 e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

. 

!
 

C
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
t 

a
s
s
e

ts
. 

Page 94



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
9

 

!
 

E
v
e

n
ts

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 b
a

la
n

c
e
 s

h
e

e
t 

d
a

te
. 

!
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
In

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
. 

W
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
. 

P
e

n
s

io
n

 F
u

n
d

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

T
h

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
ts

 d
ra

ft
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 2
3

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
2

. 
I 
h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 m

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

. 
I 

e
x
p

e
c
t 

to
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 b
y
 2

7
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
. 

I 
w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 

o
ra

l 
u

p
d

a
te

 o
n

 m
y
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

7
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
. 

 

Page 95



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

0
 F

e
e

s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
I 
re

p
o

rt
e
d

 m
y
 p

la
n

n
e
d

 a
u

d
it

 f
e
e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

. 

I 
w

ill
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 f
e

e
. 

T
a

b
le

 4
: 

F
e

e
s

 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 f
e

e
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 (

£
) 

E
x

p
e

c
te

d
 f

e
e

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 (
£

) 

A
u

d
it
 

4
2

,5
5

1
 

4
2

,5
5

1
 

N
o

n
-a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 
0

 
0

 

T
o

ta
l

4
2

,5
5

1
4

2
,5

5
1

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 p

a
id

 a
 r

e
b

a
te

 o
f 

£
3

,4
0

4
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

a
tt

a
in

in
g

 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
, 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

t 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
p

a
y
a

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 £

3
9

,1
4

7
. 

Page 96



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

1
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
a

 –
 D

ra
ft

 
in

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
a
u

d
it

o
r’

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 A
U

D
IT

O
R

’S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
 O

F
 D

U
R

H
A

M
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

I 
h

a
v
e

 a
u

d
it
e

d
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8

. 
T

h
e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e

 t
h

e
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 B

a
la

n
c
e

 S
h

e
e
t,

 t
h

e
 

C
a

s
h

 F
lo

w
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
In

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 M

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 F
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
la

te
d

 n
o

te
s
. 

T
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

lie
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 l
a

w
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
. 

 T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 s

o
le

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

D
u

rh
a

m
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 P
a

rt
 I

I 
o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8

 a
n
d

 f
o

r 
n

o
 o

th
e

r 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

, 
a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 4
8

 o
f 

th
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1

0
. 

 R
e

s
p

e
c

ti
v

e
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

o
r 

A
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 m
o

re
 f

u
lly

 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
R

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
’ 
R

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
, 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 p
ro

p
e

r 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o
m

, 
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
b

e
in

g
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 g

iv
e

 a
 t

ru
e

 a
n

d
 f

a
ir

 v
ie

w
. 

M
y
 

Page 97



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

2
 re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 t

o
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

re
s
s
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
 l
a
w

 a
n

d
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 

(U
K

 a
n

d
 I

re
la

n
d

).
 T

h
o

s
e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 m

e
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 B

o
a

rd
’s

 E
th

ic
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
. 

 S
c

o
p

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

A
n

 a
u

d
it
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 a

m
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

to
 g

iv
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 f

re
e

 f
ro

m
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t,
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
c
a

u
s
e

d
 b

y
 f

ra
u

d
 o

r 
e

rr
o

r.
 T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f:
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 c
ir

c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 a

p
p

lie
d

 a
n

d
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
; 

th
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
; 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 
I 

re
a

d
 a

ll 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

n
d
 n

o
n

-f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

la
n

a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o

rd
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
in

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

If
 I

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
n

y
 a

p
p

a
re

n
t 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

r 
in

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 I

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

m
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

In
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
: 

"
 

g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
 a

n
d

 o
f 

it
s
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

y
e

a
r 

th
e

n
 e

n
d

e
d

; 
a

n
d

 

"
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 

In
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

, 
th

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 g

iv
e

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

la
n

a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o

rd
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
s
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 M
a

tt
e

rs
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 I

 r
e

p
o

rt
 b

y
 e

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
i

I 
re

p
o

rt
 t

o
 y

o
u

 i
f:

 

"
 

in
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

re
fl
e
c
t 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 ‘
D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 G
o

o
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t:
 a

 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

’ 
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 C

IP
F

A
/S

O
L

A
C

E
 i
n

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
7

; 

"
 

I 
is

s
u

e
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 i
n

te
re

s
t 
u

n
d

e
r 

s
e

c
ti
o
n

 8
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8

; 

"
 

I 
d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
 u

n
d

e
r 

s
e

c
ti
o
n

 1
1

 o
f 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9

9
8

 a
n

y
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 a

s
 o

n
e

 t
h

a
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
s
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

it
 a

t 
a

 
p

u
b

lic
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 t
o

 d
e
c
id

e
 w

h
a

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

; 
o

r 

"
 

I 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
 a

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
s
p

e
c
ia

l 
p

o
w

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
o
r 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9

9
8

. 
 

I 
h

a
v
e

 n
o

th
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c
ts

 
   

Page 98



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

3
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

I 
h

a
v
e

 a
u

d
it
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1

9
9

8
. 

T
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e

 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t,
 t
h

e
 N

e
t 

A
s
s
e

ts
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 n

o
te

s
. 

T
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 f
ra

m
e

w
o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
p

p
lie

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 l
a

w
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
. 

 T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 s

o
le

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

D
u

rh
a

m
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 P
a

rt
 I

I 
o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8

 a
n
d

 f
o

r 
n

o
 o

th
e

r 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

, 
a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 4
8

 o
f 

th
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1

0
. 

 R
e

s
p

e
c

ti
v

e
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

o
r 

A
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 m
o

re
 f

u
lly

 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
R

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
’ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
, 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 p
ro

p
e

r 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 

a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
, 

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

b
e

in
g

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 g

iv
e

 a
 t

ru
e

 
a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

. 
M

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 t

o
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

re
s
s
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
 l
a

w
 a

n
d

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 (

U
K

 a
n

d
 I

re
la

n
d

).
 T

h
o

s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 m

e
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 B

o
a

rd
’s

 E
th

ic
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
. 

 S
c

o
p

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

A
n

 a
u

d
it
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 a

m
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

to
 g

iv
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 f

re
e

 f
ro

m
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t,
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
c
a

u
s
e

d
 b

y
 f

ra
u

d
 o

r 
e

rr
o

r.
 T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f:
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
’s

 c
ir

c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 a

p
p

lie
d

 a
n

d
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
; 

th
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
R

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
; 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

I 
re

a
d

 a
ll 

th
e

 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
a
n
d

 n
o

n
-f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

la
n

a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o

rd
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
in

c
o

n
s
is

te
n
c
ie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

If
 I

 
b

e
c
o

m
e

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
n

y
 a

p
p

a
re

n
t 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

r 
in

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 I

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

m
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

In
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
’s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
: 

"
 

g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

e
d

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

a
n

d
 

d
is

p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n

d
’s

 a
s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
; 

a
n

d
 

"
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
. 

 O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
e

r 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 

In
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

, 
th

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 g

iv
e

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

la
n

a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o

rd
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
s
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

Page 99



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

4
 C

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
s

e
c

u
ri

n
g

 e
c

o
n

o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
n

e
s

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 u
s

e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

R
e

s
p

e
c

ti
v

e
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r
 T

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

p
u

tt
in

g
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
, 

to
 

e
n

s
u

re
 p

ro
p
e

r 
s
te

w
a

rd
s
h

ip
 a

n
d

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e

 a
d

e
q

u
a

c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 I 

a
m

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 5

 o
f 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9

9
8

 t
o

 s
a

ti
s
fy

 m
y
s
e

lf
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

A
u

d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
s
 m

e
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 
y
o

u
 m

y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
h

a
v
in

g
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

c
ri

te
ri

a
 s

p
e

c
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

 I 
re

p
o

rt
 i
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
e

 t
o

 m
y
 a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

m
e

 f
ro

m
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

I 
a

m
 n

o
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r,

 n
o

r 
h

a
v
e

 I
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
, 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

a
ll 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

 S
c

o
p

e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
s

e
c

u
ri

n
g

 e
c

o
n

o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
n

e
s

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 u
s

e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

I 
h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

A
u

d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
, 

h
a

v
in

g
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ie

d
 c

ri
te

ri
a

, 
p

u
b
lis

h
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
, 

a
s
 t

o
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r:
 

"
 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
re

s
ili

e
n

c
e

; 
a

n
d

 

"
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g
 h

o
w

 i
t 

s
e

c
u

re
s
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
. 

 T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 t
w

o
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 a
s
 t

h
o

s
e

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f

o
r 

m
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 i
n
 s

a
ti
s
fy

in
g

 m
y
s
e

lf
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 

3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

. 
 I 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 m
y
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 m

y
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 I

 u
n

d
e

rt
o

o
k
 s

u
c
h

 w
o

rk
 a

s
 I

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a
ry

 t
o

 
fo

rm
 a

 v
ie

w
 o

n
 w

h
e

th
e

r,
 i
n

 a
ll 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

s
p

e
c
ts

, 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a

d
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 p
ro

p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

C
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

 O
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

m
y
 w

o
rk

, 
h

a
v
in

g
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n
 t

h
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 p
u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
, 

I 
a

m
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 

th
a

t,
 i
n

 a
ll 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

s
p

e
c
ts

, 
D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
.  

D
e

la
y
 i

n
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it

 

Page 100



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

5
 I 

c
a

n
n

o
t 

fo
rm

a
lly

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 u
n

ti
l 
I 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t

o
 i
s
s
u

e
 m

y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
in

 
re

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 W

h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 c

o
n

s
o

lid
a

ti
o

n
 p

a
c
k
. 

I 
a

m
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 d
o
e

s
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
e

ff
e

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

r 
o

n
 m

y
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
. 

  [C
a

m
e

ro
n

 W
a

d
d

e
ll 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
A

u
d

it
o

r 

N
ic

k
a

lls
 H

o
u

s
e

 

M
e

tr
o

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

G
A

T
E

S
H

E
A

D
 

N
E

1
1

 9
N

H
 

 2
8

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

 

Page 101



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

6
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
b

 –
 D

ra
ft

 
in

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
a
u

d
it

o
r’

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
fo

r 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 A
U

D
IT

O
R

’S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
 O

F
 D

U
R

H
A

M
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
e

n
s

io
n

 f
u

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

I 
h

a
v
e

 a
u

d
it
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1

9
9

8
. 

T
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e

 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t,
 t
h

e
 N

e
t 

A
s
s
e

ts
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 n

o
te

s
. 

T
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 f
ra

m
e

w
o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
p

p
lie

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 l
a

w
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
. 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 s

o
le

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

D
u

rh
a

m
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 P
a

rt
 I

I 
o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8

 a
n
d

 f
o

r 
n

o
 o

th
e

r 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

, 
a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 4
8

 o
f 

th
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 o
f 

A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
. 

 R
e

s
p

e
c

ti
v

e
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

o
r 

A
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 m
o

re
 f

u
lly

 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
R

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 R

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
, 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
’s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
b

e
in

g
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 g

iv
e

 a
 t

ru
e

 a
n

d
 f

a
ir

 v
ie

w
. 

M
y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 t

o
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d
 

e
x
p

re
s
s
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h
 a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 l
a

w
 a

n
d

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 (

U
K

 a
n

d
 I

re
la

n
d

).
 T

h
o

s
e

 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 m

e
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 B

o
a

rd
’s

 E
th

ic
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
.

Page 102



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

7
 S

c
o

p
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

A
n

 a
u

d
it
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 a

m
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

to
 g

iv
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 f

re
e

 f
ro

m
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t,
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
c
a

u
s
e

d
 b

y
 f

ra
u

d
 o

r 
e

rr
o

r.
 T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f:
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
’s

 c
ir

c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 a

p
p

lie
d

 a
n

d
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
; 

th
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
R

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
; 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

I 
re

a
d

 a
ll 

th
e

 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
a
n
d

 n
o

n
-f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
in

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

If
 I

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 a
w

a
re

 
o

f 
a

n
y
 a

p
p

a
re

n
t 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

r 
in

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 I

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

m
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

In
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
’s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
: 

"
 

g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

e
d

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

a
n

d
 

d
is

p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n

d
’s

 a
s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
; 

a
n

d
 

"
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

. 
 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
e

r 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 

In
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

, 
th

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 g

iv
e

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 M
a

tt
e

rs
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 I

 r
e

p
o

rt
 b

y
 e

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 

I 
re

p
o

rt
 t

o
 y

o
u

 i
f,

 i
n

 m
y
 o

p
in

io
n

 t
h

e
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

re
fl
e
c
t 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
P

e
n

s
io

n
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

(A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
) 

R
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 2

0
0

8
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

. 
I 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

th
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

 t
h

is
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t.

 
   [S

ig
n

a
tu

re
] 

 C
a

m
e

ro
n

 W
a

d
d

e
ll 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
A

u
d

it
o

r 
N

ic
k
a

lls
 H

o
u

s
e

 M
e

tr
o

 C
e

n
tr

e
 G

A
T

E
S

H
E

A
D

 N
E

1
1

 9
N

H
 

 2
8

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

Page 103



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

8
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 U
n

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 

e
rr

o
rs

I 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 e

rr
o

rs
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

F
u

n
d

 A
c

c
o

u
n

t 
N

e
t 

A
s

s
e

ts
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

It
e

m
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
N

a
tu

re
 o

f 
e

rr
o

r 
D

r 
£

’0
0

0
s
 

C
r 

£
’0

0
0

s
 

D
r 

£
’0

0
0

s
 

C
r 

£
’0

0
0

s
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 

re
c
e

iv
a

b
le

  

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 m
a

rk
e

t 

v
a

lu
e

 

D
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 p

e
r 

D
C

C
P

F
 G

L
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

rd
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 i
n

 p
e

n
s
io

n
s
 

s
e

c
ti
o

n
 

3
0

7
 

  

  3
0

7
 

 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 m
a

rk
e

t 

v
a

lu
e

 

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 p
a

y
a

b
le

 

D
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 D
C

C
P

F
 d

o
w

n
lo

a
d

 f
ro

m
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
lin

k
 (

R
L

) 
a

n
d

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 d

o
w

n
lo

a
d

 f
ro

m
 

R
L

 

1
4

6
 

  1
4

6
 

 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 m
a

rk
e

t 

v
a

lu
e

 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 

re
c
e

iv
a

b
le

 

D
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
a

b
le

 

p
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

r 
re

c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d

 D
C

C
P

F
 G

L
 

1
3

0
 

  1
3

0
 

 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 m
a

rk
e

t 

v
a

lu
e

 

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 p
a

y
a

b
le

 

D
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 c
o

m
m

u
ta

ti
o

n
s
 p

a
y
a

b
le

 p
e

r 

D
C

C
P

F
 G

L
 a

n
d

 p
e

r 
re

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 s

y
s
te

m
 

1
2

2
 

  1
2

2
 

 
 

D
iv

id
e

n
d

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 m
a

rk
e

t 

U
n

c
e

rt
a

in
ty

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 
2

,2
4

0
 

 2
,2

4
0

 

 
 

Page 104



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

9
 

F
u

n
d

 A
c

c
o

u
n

t 
N

e
t 

A
s

s
e

ts
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

v
a

lu
e

 

N
o

te
 1

4
 I

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

U
n

c
e

rt
a

in
ty

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

d
e

ri
v
a

ti
v
e

s
 s

a
le

s
 p

ro
c
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
n
g

e
 i
n

 

m
a

rk
e

t 
v
a

lu
e

s
. 

£
1

,0
6

8
k
 

- 
 

- 
- 

- 

  

Page 105



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

0
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 3
 –

 C
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 e

rr
o

rs
 

I 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 e

rr
o

rs
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
h

a
v
e

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 
 

F
u

n
d

 A
c

c
o

u
n

t 
N

e
t 

A
s

s
e

ts
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

It
e

m
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
N

a
tu

re
 o

f 
e

rr
o

r 
D

r 
£

’0
0

0
s
 

C
r 

£
’0

0
0

s
 

D
r 

£
’0

0
0

s
 

C
r 

£
’0

0
0

s
 

D
e

ri
v
a

ti
v
e

 a
s
s
e

ts
 

D
e

ri
v
a

ti
v
e

 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 

G
ro

s
s
in

g
 u

p
 o

f 
d

e
ri

v
a

ti
v
e

s
 

 
 

1
3

,7
8

4
 

 1
3

,7
8

4
 

 A
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

e
ri

c
a

l 
e

rr
o

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
 n

o
te

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

. 

O
n

ly
 t

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
o

n
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

ta
b

le
. 

A
m

e
n

d
e

d
 d

is
c

lo
s

u
re

 n
o

te
s

 

D
is

c
lo

s
u

re
  

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

N
o

te
 1

3
 -

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

b
y
 a

s
s
e

ts
 t

y
p

e
.

M
is

a
llo

c
a

ti
o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 q
u

o
te

d
 a

n
d

 u
n

q
u

o
te

d
: 

A
q

u
ila

 F
u

n
d
 £

1
2

3
,2

6
3

k
 

N
o

te
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

. 

N
o

te
 1

3
 –

 R
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

M
is

c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

IV
 v

e
h

ic
le

 p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

s
 a

s
 o

v
e

rs
e

a
s
 e

q
u

it
y
 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

s
 £

1
7

,7
5

1
k
 

N
o

te
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

. 

N
o

te
 1

3
 –

 R
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

M
is

c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

IV
 v

e
h

ic
le

 s
a

le
s
 a

s
 o

v
e

rs
e
a

s
 e

q
u

it
y
 

s
a

le
s
 £

2
7

,0
9

2
k
 

N
o

te
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

. 

N
o

te
 1

4
 –

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
In

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
 

M
is

a
llo

c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

‘o
th

e
r 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
a

s
s
e

ts
’ 
to

 l
o

a
n
s
 a

n
d

 

re
c
e

iv
a

b
le

s
 c

o
lu

m
n

 –
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
n

 F
V

P
L

 £
2

9
,1

7
6

k
 

N
o

te
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

. 

N
o

te
 1

4
 –

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
In

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
 

M
is

a
llo

c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
lia

b
ili

ti
e

s
 t

o
 l
o

a
n

s
 a

n
d

 
N

o
te

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

. 

Page 106



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

1
 

re
c
e

iv
a

b
le

s
 c

o
lu

m
n

 –
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
n

 F
V

P
L

 £
1

6
,5

5
2

k
 

N
o

te
 1

9
 R

e
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
y
 t

ra
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l 
n

o
te

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e
c
t 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 o

f 
a

ll 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
, 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 w

h
o

 a
re

 a
c
ti
v
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
, 

e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 c

a
s
h

 e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

tr
a

n
s
fe

r 
v
a

lu
e

s
. 

N
o

te
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

. 

 

Page 107



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

2
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 4
 –

 D
ra

ft
 l
e

tt
e

r 
o

f 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

D
u

rh
a

m
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 -

 A
u

d
it

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

e
d

 3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
2

 

I 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
o

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

o
f 

m
y
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 a

n
d

 b
e

lie
f,

 h
a

v
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 y

o
u

 i
n

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
’s

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
. 

 

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

 

I 
h

a
v
e

 f
u

lf
ill

e
d

 m
y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

A
u

d
it
 (

E
n

g
la

n
d

) 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 2

0
1

1
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o
m

 w
h

ic
h

 g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f

a
ir

 v
ie

w
 o

f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
, 

fo
r 

th
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 y
o

u
, 
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
m

a
k
in

g
 

a
c
c
u

ra
te

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 y

o
u

. 
 

U
n

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 m

is
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

T
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ts

 o
f 

u
n

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 a
re

 n
o

t 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

e
it
h

e
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

lly
 o

r 
in

 a
g

g
re

g
a

te
. 

  

T
h

e
s
e

 m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

n
o

t 
c
o

rr
e

c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

s
e

 

it
e

m
s
 a

re
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
. 

!
 

**
**

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 t

o
 i
n

s
e

rt
 t

e
x
t 

h
e

re
**

**
**

**
**

**
* 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 r
e

c
o

rd
s

 

I 
h

a
v
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 p

e
rs

o
n

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
. 

I 
h

a
v
e

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

rd
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

ll 
th

e
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
. 

Page 108



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

3
 In

te
rn

a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

I 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

 t
o

 y
o

u
 a

ll 
d

e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 I

 a
m

 a
w

a
re

. 

Ir
re

g
u

la
ri

ti
e

s
 

I 
a

c
k
n

o
w

le
d
g

e
 m

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

in
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
to

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
te

c
t 

fr
a

u
d

 o
r 

e
rr

o
r.

 

I 
a

ls
o

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

I 
h

a
v
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
: 

!
 

m
y
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
, 
o

r 
s
u

s
p

e
c
te

d
 f

ra
u

d
, 

in
v
o

lv
in

g
 e

it
h

e
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
ro

le
s
 i
n

 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o
r 

o
th

e
rs

 

w
h

e
re

 f
ra

u
d

 c
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
e

ff
e

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
; 

 

!
 

m
y
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 o

f 
a

n
y
 a

lle
g

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
, 

o
r 

s
u

s
p

e
c
te

d
 f

ra
u

d
, 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
n

ti
ty

’s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 b

y
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
, 

fo
rm

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
, 

a
n

a
ly

s
ts

, 
re

g
u

la
to

rs
 o

r 
o
th

e
rs

; 
a

n
d

 

!
 

th
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 r

is
k
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

lly
 m

is
s
ta

te
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
. 

 L
a

w
, 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

, 
c

o
n

tr
a

c
tu

a
l 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
d

e
s

 o
f 

p
ra

c
ti

c
e

 

I 
h

a
v
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 t

o
 y

o
u

 a
ll 

k
n

o
w

n
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

, 
o

r 
s
u

s
p

e
c
te

d
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 l
a

w
s
, 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
d

e
s
 o

f 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

, 
w

h
o

s
e

 

e
ff

e
c
ts

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e

n
 p

re
p

a
ri

n
g

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 l
a

w
, 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

 T
h

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 

o
f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
c
o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
e

ff
e

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

. 
  

A
ll 

k
n

o
w

n
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 l
it
ig

a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 c

la
im

s
, 

w
h

o
s
e

 e
ff
e

c
ts

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e

n
 p

re
p

a
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 

to
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
o
r 

a
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
d
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

Page 109



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

4
 U

n
fu

n
d

e
d

 p
e

n
s

io
n

 l
ia

b
il
it

ie
s

 

I 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

u
n

fu
n

d
e
d

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 e

.g
. 
d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 a

d
d

e
d

 y
e

a
rs

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

G
P

S
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 

te
a

c
h

e
rs

 u
n
d

e
r 

th
e

 T
e

a
c
h

e
rs

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 I
A

S
 1

9
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 f

ig
u

re
s
.

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti

m
a

te
s

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 f

a
ir

 v
a

lu
e

s
 

I 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
d

 a
t 

fa
ir
 v

a
lu

e
. 

 

F
o

r 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 u

n
q

u
o

te
d

 P
ri

v
a

te
 E

q
u

it
y
 a

n
d

 H
e

d
g

e
 F

u
n

d
s
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

I 
c
o

n
fi
rm

: 

!
 

th
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
m

e
th

o
d

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
la

te
d

 a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 m
o

d
e

ls
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
y
 i
n

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
th

o
d

; 

!
 

th
e

 a
s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t’
s
 i
n

te
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
, 

w
h

e
re

 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
; 

!
 

th
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 a
re

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
n

d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 C

o
d

e
; 

a
n

d
 

!
 

th
a

t 
n

o
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
e

v
e

n
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
s
 t

h
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 t

o
 a

d
ju

s
t 

th
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n
ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

R
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

y
 t

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

I 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

I 
h

a
v
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 t

h
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
’s

 r
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

th
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

y
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 I

 a
m

 

a
w

a
re

. 
 I

 h
a

v
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 s

u
c
h

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

. 

 S
u

b
s

e
q

u
e

n
t 

e
v

e
n

ts

I 
h

a
v
e

 a
d

ju
s
te

d
 f

o
r 

o
r 

d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

e
v
e

n
ts

 s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

S
ig

n
e

d
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

I 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 t
h

is
 l
e
tt
e

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

7
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

 S
ig

n
e

d
 

N
a
m

e
 

P
o

s
it
io

n
 

Page 110



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

5
 D

a
te

 

Page 111



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

6
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 5
 –

 G
lo

s
s

a
ry

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

 

L
e

tt
e

r 
is

s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 t

h
a

t 
s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 a

n
d

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
’ 
w

o
rk

. 
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r’
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r 

is
s
u

e
s
 t
h

e
ir

 o
p

in
io

n
. 

A
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e

 a
c

c
o

u
n

ts

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 o

f 
a

n
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e

s
 a

ll 
w

o
rk

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
o

r 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

ir
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8

. 
 

A
u

d
it

e
d

 b
o

d
y
  

A
 b

o
d

y
 t

o
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
p

p
o

in
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

r.
 

A
u

d
it

in
g

 P
ra

c
ti

c
e

s
 B

o
a

rd
 (

A
P

B
)

T
h

e
 b

o
d

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

K
 f

o
r 

is
s
u

in
g

 a
u

d
it
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
, 

e
th

ic
a
l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
. 

It
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

re
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 

h
ig

h
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
u

s
e

rs
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n
c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

 

A
u

d
it

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

P
ro

n
o

u
n

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 A
P

B
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

n
ta

in
 b

a
s
ic

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d

 e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 w

it
h

 w
h

ic
h

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 m

u
s
t 
c
o

m
p

ly
, 

e
x
c
e

p
t 

w
h

e
re

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

 s
ta

te
d

 

in
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
. 
 

A
u

d
it

o
r(

s
) 

 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

 

Page 112



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

7
 C

o
d

e
 (

th
e

)

T
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a
l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
b

o
d

ie
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 P

a
rl

ia
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 (
th

e
)

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f

o
r 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

. 
 

E
th

ic
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

P
ro

n
o

u
n

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 A
P

B
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

n
ta

in
 b

a
s
ic

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

, 
in

te
g

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

h
a

t 
a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
d

u
c
t 
o

f 
a

u
d

it
s
 a

n
d

 

w
it
h

 w
h

ic
h

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 m

u
s
t 
c
o

m
p

ly
, 

e
x
c
e

p
t 

w
h

e
re

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

 s
ta

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

e
d

. 
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

T
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
, 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
 (

E
n

g
la

n
d

) 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 2

0
1
1

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n
 t

h
e

 

U
n

it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
. 

In
te

rn
a

l 
c

o
n

tr
o

l

T
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

, 
fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

, 
th

a
t 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a
b

le
 a

s
s
u

ra
n
c
e

 o
f 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
, 

in
te

rn
a

l 
fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 l
a

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
. 

 

M
a

te
ri

a
li

ty
  

T
h

e
 A

P
B

 d
e

fi
n

e
s
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
c
e

p
t 

a
s
 ‘
a

n
 e

x
p

re
s
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

c
e

 o
r 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

m
a

tt
e

r 
in

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

. 
A

 m
a

tt
e

r 
is

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
if
 i
ts

 o
m

is
s
io

n
 w

o
u

ld
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 o

f 
a

n
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r’
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

; 
lik

e
w

is
e

 a
 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
is

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
if
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
in

fl
u

e
n

c
e

. 
M

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

a
n

y
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

r 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
it
e
m

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
m

. 
M

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
a

p
a

b
le

 o
f 
g

e
n

e
ra

l 
m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
a

l 
d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
, 

a
s
 i
t 

h
a

s
 b

o
th

 

q
u

a
lit

a
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

n
ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

’.
  

T
h

e
 t

e
rm

 ‘
m

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
’ 
a

p
p

lie
s
 o

n
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
u

ti
e

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

s
ta

tu
te

, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

ir
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

w
h

ic
h

 d
o

 n
o

t 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a
ri

ly
 a

ff
e

c
t 

th
e

ir
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

P
e

n
s

io
n

 F
u

n
d

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

Page 113



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

8
 T

h
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

p
o

rt
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

th
a

t 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 m

u
s
t 

p
u

b
lis

h
 u

n
d

e
r 

R
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
 3

4
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
P

e
n

s
io

n
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

(A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
) 

R
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 2

0
0

8
. 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
c

e

T
h

e
 c

o
n

c
e

p
t 
o

f 
‘s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

c
e

’ 
a

p
p

lie
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e

 w
id

e
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
u
d

it
o

rs
 a

d
o

p
t 
a

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
y
 d

if
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
 l
e

v
e

l 

a
p

p
lie

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

c
e
 h

a
s
 b

o
th

 q
u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

n
ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

. 
 

T
h

o
s

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

d
 w

it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 

T
h

o
s
e

 e
n

tr
u
s
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

, 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a

n
d

 d
ir

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
. 

T
h

is
 t

e
rm

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
[t

h
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 P

a
n

e
l]
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

  

Page 114



  If
 y

o
u

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 a
 c

o
p

y
 o

f 
th

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

in
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 f
o

rm
a

t 
o

r 
in

 a
 l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 E

n
g

lis
h

, 
p

le
a

s
e

 c
a

ll:
  

0
8

4
4

 7
9

8
 7

0
7

0
 

©
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 2

0
1

2
. 

D
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 P

u
b

lis
h

in
g

 T
e

a
m

. 

Im
a

g
e

 c
o

p
y
ri

g
h

t 
©

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

 T
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 e

x
p

la
in

s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 

a
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
. 

R
e

p
o

rt
s
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 b

y
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 t

o
 n

o
n

-e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 d
ir

e
c
to

rs
, 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
r 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 

fo
r 

th
e

 s
o

le
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
. 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

c
c
e

p
t 

n
o

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

: 

!
 

a
n

y
 d

ir
e

c
to

r/
m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

r 
o

ff
ic

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
ir

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
; 

o
r 

 

!
 

a
n

y
 t

h
ir

d
 p

a
rt

y
. 

 

            

 
 

w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

o
v

.u
k
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
2

 

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Page 117

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 125

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15

Page 127

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 16

Page 137

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17

Page 151

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 18

Page 167

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 19

Page 175

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 20

Page 231

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 238

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 21

Page 239

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 240

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 241

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 256

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 The Minutes of the Meeting held on 4 September 2012
	3 Graphs showing recent movements of the Stock and Share Indices
	Overseas Equity Markets
	10 Year Govt Bond Yield
	30 Year Gilt Yields

	4 Graphs showing recent movements of the Major Currencies against Sterling
	£ vs Euro
	£ vs Yen

	5 Performance Management Report
	Performance Management Report - Appendix

	6 Pension Fund Investments
	7 Record Keeping - Pensions Regulator Best Practice Guidelines
	8 Terms of Reference
	9 Local Government Pension Scheme: Investment in Partnerships - CLG Consultation
	CLG Consultation - Appendix

	10 Short Term Investments for the Period Ended 30 September 2012
	11 Annual Governance Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2012
	AGR Appendix

	14 The Minutes of the Meeting held on  4 September 2012
	TopContributors-Durham

	15 Report of the Pension Fund Advisor
	16 Report of BlackRock
	17 Report of AllianceBernstein
	18 Report of CBRE Global Investors
	19 Report of Royal London Asset Management
	20 Report of Barings Asset Management
	21 Transition Manager Post Trade Report
	Post Trade Report Appendix


